ALLENTOWN - - 1950

Marh')zq 200 z,/em's 0/ growf/z

Published for

0ld Home Week Celebration

Hritten by ALLENTONIANS

Photographs by Carpb-CHRONICLE NEWSPAPERS

(prepared by John Nicklas and ‘I Milton Pockmaker)
Advertising Sales by Freperic S, Burcaw
Compiled and Edited by Pun. H. Storcn

DPrinted by Miers-Bacusman Lrrnograriing Co.

AUGUST « 1850






Donartp V. Hock, Mavor of Allentoien






A Word from The Mayor

Allentown’s Old Home Week Celebration is three-fold in purpose: to attract
back to the community old friends and former residents; to give the citizens of
this community and the surrounding area an opporrunity to othcially salute the
jubilee vear of the twentieth century; and, to othcially mark the town’s passing
of the 100,000 figure in population.

Certainly this Queen Ciey of the Lehigh Valley has grown down through the
decades. Not only from the standpoint of people, but also from the standpoint
of industry, and of education, and of recreation, and of assimilation, to mention

but a few.

Whatever growth has been achieved must be credited to a forward-looking,
onward-moving citizenry, ever willing to support leaders in all fields who present
good ideas and workable plans for commumty betterment, for as an unknown
poet stated:

“Cities are cchat men make them
Whatsoecer those cities may be,
Slothful, slozen, slecpy,

Progressice, beawtiful, free”

[t should also be noted that our community s aware of the face that democracy
begins on the Tocal levels that for democracy to work at all i muse work at home.
So that, living as we are at a time when our form of government is being constantly
and willfully assaled; and recogmzing the fact that we cannot get rid of a negative
condition by denying it, but only by substituting a positive condition in its place;
and being determined that Allentown shall continue to progress and prosper as
an integral part of the American way of life; let us set aside this week as a rededica-
tion to our American hentage, cach one of us resolving to live up to the “Nine
Promises of a Good Citizen™:

I will vote at all elections.

I will serve on a jury when asked.

I will respect and obey the laws.

[ will pay my taxes understandingly.

[ will work for peace but will dutifully accept my responsibilities in time of
war and will respect the Flag.

I will avoid any group prejudice based on class, race or religion.

1 will support our system of free public education by doing evervehing T can
to improve the schools in my own community.

I will try to make my community a better place in which to live.

1 will practice and teach the principles of good citizenship right in my own home.
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Old Home W eek Steering Committee

Those who did most of planning for Old Home Week celebration included, scated:
TruMaN L. KokHLER, committer secretary; Mrs. RaLrn Henry, Lroyp E. GrRamMes,
treasurer; ELsie M. HeckMaNn, and Vayor Donann V. Hock, chairman,; standing:
Russkrr Furrorp, Henky Moccro, Geranp D. Reixsmrry, Joun McHuon,
Lovss E. Herrz, James M. Bascos and Frank E. Gwynn.
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Official Program of Events

< SR 4

“OLD HOME WEEK”

Yo
SUNDAY — AUGUST 13

A. M. --CuurcH Services throughout the community, imtiating OLp Home WEEK.
Ringing of Church bells 2t noon for 3 minutes to officially herald OLo Home WEEk.

2:00 p.m.- Opening—ART ExHiBiT—Green Room, Americus Hotel. Visiting hours 1:00 p.m.
to 10:00 p.m. all week.
3:30 p.m.—-CatHoLric Servicies at Fair Grounds, Judge Robert V. Bolger, speaker.

MONDAY — AUGUST 14

8:30 p.m.-- BoxiNG ProGraM at the Fair Grounds.

TUESDAY — AUGUST 15

1:30 p.m.~-MivGeT BaseBALL ToURNAMENT, Breadon Field.
8:00 p.m.—ExHIBITION BaseBarr, Breadon Field.

WEDNESDAY — AUGUST 16

9:30 a.m.--BicycLe Races at Dorney Park Midget Auto Race Track.

8:30 p.m.—-“ArLENTOWN TALENT ON PArADE” at Allentown Fair Grounds; 16 big vaudeville
acts; music by Pioncer Band, Rain or Shine. (Admisssinn charge: Fifty Cents, tax

included. No reserved seats.)

THURSDAY — AUGUST 17

8:00 p.m.- -CoNciRT Yy Massep Banps (Allentown, Marine, Pioneer and Municipal)
at Allentown H:igh School Stadium. No admission charge.

FRIDAY — AUGUST 18

8:00 p.m.—-FoLk FestivaL under direction of Allentown Recreation Commission, at Allentown
High School Stadium. (Admission charge: Fifty Cents, tax included. Ticket will
entitle the purchaser to a chance on a free drawing for a 1950 Ford Sedan. No

reserved seats. Rain date: Saturday, August 19th). FIREWORKS.

8:00 p.m. -ANNUAL ALL-STAR BasesaLt GaMme, Baltimore Boyvs’ Club All-Stars and Allentown
Boys’ Club All-Stars, Breadon Field.

(Prior to game, Band Concert, Pionecer Band, 7:15 p.m.)

LenicH CouNTty DAy IN BusiNESs AREAS.

SATURDAY — AUGUST 19

3:00 p.m. -~-Mammorn PARADE from Fair Grounds, south to Hamilton Street, East to Fifth
Street, North to Chew Street.

SUNDAY — AUGUST 20

3:00 p.m.—West Park, OL.b Home Week ComMuNiTY RELIGIOUS SERVICE.
(Rain date-—Sunday, August 27th) -



Allentown’s City Council

Councilman NorTON L. LicHTENwALNER, Councilman CrLarence H. MAarcks,
Mayor Donarp V. Hock, Councilman CuariLes B. MiLiLer, and Councilman
ALEXANDER M. PETERs.



Short Sketch on Government

When Allentown was incorporated as a city
March 12, 1867, 1t was a tiny place in comparison
to the sprawling metropohs of today.  Bound-
aries were the Lehigh River on the cast, Tenth
Street on the west, the Littde Leligh on the
south and Sumner Avenue on the north. Popu-
alation did not attamn the SO,000 mark  (less
than half of the 106,000 of todav) unal after

the turn of the century.

City officials have had to keep pace with

this fast growing industrial and commeraal

center of Eastern Pennsylvania, and  accord-

ing to the records they have done an excellent
job. This can be noted in a statement issued
by the office of Councilman Norton L. Lichten-
Accounts  and  Finances,

walner, director  of

comparing 1900 with the 1950 estimate:

1900

Balances Jan. 1, 1900, General Ciey, Water and Sinking Funds

General Ciey Fund Recepes
Water Fund Receipts. 0

Total Recerpts. .
Total Receipts and Balances .

$77.944.69
P 136,197.43
124,558.69

260,756.12
338,700.81

DISBURSEMENTS

General Ciey and Water Deparement. 000000
Bonds and Interest Paad . 00000000

Tovarn. ...

Balances all Fands, December 31, 1900, ... .

General Criey Annapated Tocome. o000 000000
Budget Including Debt Serviee ...

Unappropriated Balance. . ... ... ... .
Water Department Anticipated Income. ... ...

Budgee. ... ... ... ...

Unappropriated Balance. ... ... ... .. .. ... ..

Thrfey management has long been among the
most important virtues of the residents of Allen-
town. It 1s the reason that most Allentown
homes are owned by the tenants. It is the reason
that Allentown’s city officials have managed to
keep abreast of the times without encumbering
the taxpayers with staggering debts.

The city government operates with approxi-
mately 600 employees--including the police and

197,193.11
8,204.00

205,397.71
133.303.70

338,700.81

11,106.98
911,650.00

fire departments, including street repair gangs,
garbage collection and disposal forces, including
labor for the vast park system, and including
ofhce help at city hall, engineers, lawvers, clerks
and tvpists.  And yet, although the city operates
with a minimum of emplovees for a business as
large as it is, accomplishment records of the vari-
ous departments are above average.

(Continued on Page 10)
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(Continued from Page 9)

The Allentown Police Department, directed
by Mavor Donald V. Hock, director of Public
Affairs, 1s manned by 120 men. 1t has instituted
a trathe system which today is being copied by
other rapidly growing cities, and which enabled
this city to rank chird in trathe safecy in che
nation. It has done much to curb crime: through
vigilance by the cop on the beat; through fast,
thorough investigation of its detective bureau:
through establishment  of a smooth-operating
juvenile and educational burcau. and tivough able
prosecution of criminal cases.

The Fire Deparement, like the Police Depart-
ment, has been “domg the most with the least.”
lts 114 men have done so much for fire prevention
that fire insurance rates in Allentown are among
the lowest in the country and only last vear this
city ranked twenty-second m the United Staves
and Canada for fire safery.

Councilman Clarence H. Marcks, director of
Public Safety, reported that much of Allentown’s
success in holding fire losses to a mimimum can be
ateributed to its recently inaugurated inspection
program. Zoned areas are checked regularly and
all effort 1s made tohave fire hazards, if discovered,
immediately removed.

The city’s modern Police Department, under
Chief James L. Christine, operates with two-way
radio 1n all cruisers, prowl cars, police ambulance
and uuhey cars. It functions with a Gamewell
telephone service, teletypes, fingerprinting and
photographic sections, and has begun a laundry-
mark file. Likewise, the Fire Department works
with 18 pieces of modern apparatus and has laid
out a schedule so that at least one new piece of
equipment will be purchased each year. In
addition, there are utility trucks, cars for Chief
John R. Butz and his assistants, and for the fire
INspectors.

Street Construction

The average citizen complains more about
Allentown’s streets than anything else. However,
when it is considered that in 1902 there wasn’t a
single surfaced street in the city, rapid strides
have been made. Allentown is far ahead of
many other communities of equal size.

Councilman Charles B. Miller, director of
Streets and P iblic Improvements, has noted there
are 462 miles of streets plotted on the official city
map. Of this mileage, 331.7 miles of streets are
open to travel, and 220.8 miles are improved with
various types ot surfacing, including asphalt,

concrete, oiled macadem, macadem, gravel and
cinders.  Pennsvivania has accepted 201.7 miles
of Allentown’s streets for refunds in liquid fuel
taxes.

In additon to handling streets, it is the duty of
the director of Streets and Public Improvements
to supervise storm sewers, the santary sewer
system, zoning and the muonicipal garage. Toas
interesting to observe that Allentown's 5135 nules
of storm sewers were Lud at a cost of $1,650,000,
but that they have a replacement value of more
than 35,000,000,

There are 151 miles of sanmitary sewers within
Allentown and 37 miles of lateral house con-
nections which connect the city’s builldings to the
collecting lines. Al sewage from these lines s
piped to a disposal plant on Khine’s Island, i the
Lebighe for treatment. The plant as open to
visttors at all nmes. [t was constructed with fore-
sights its present capacity of 17,300,000 gallons
datly can be doubled.  Gas collected from the
treatment operation is used to heat the building
and furnish hot wwater throughout the plant.

Water Supply

Allentown’s first water supply was obtained
from what was known as the Northampton Water
Co. m 1816, Tt operated a water works at the site
now occupied by Fountain Park bathing pool.
About 1850 the company constructed a reservorr
at Fountain and NMaple Streets. This held 65,000
gallons, adequate for the then 850 familes.

Allentown did not purchase the water supply
system until 1869, obtaining it at a cost of $98,958.
In 1887, Crystal Spring at lefferson and Lawrence
Streets” was purchased and work was started on
construction of a pumping station.  Schantz's
Spring was procured in 1898, and in 1935, the 30
million gallon reservoir on South Mountain and
the 10 million gallon reservoir on the East Side
were added to the system.

Today, according to figures compiled in the
(fhces of Councitman Alexander M. Peters, direc-
tor of Parks and Public Properties, the city’s
water plant supplies 19,500,454 gallons daily. " It
is estimated that 175.09 gallons 1s the per capita
daily average consumption. This is produced at
a cost to the taxpayers of shghtly more than 13
cents per thousand gallons.  Plans call for increase
in the water supply system in the near future so
the city will be prepared for expected needs of
continued rapid expansion.



GexeRAL HArRrRY Cray TreExLER

Allentozen's owtstanding citizen 1n Dife

and recered benefactor in death.

In recording the history of Allentown for the
first third of the Twentieth Century, the man
whose civie and industrial actvities contributed
most to the growth and progress of the city was
the late General Harry Clay Trexler.

While lumber and cement  were  General
Trexler’s principal business interests, he early saw
the opportunity for the development of public
utihities.  He assisted in the organization of the
Lehigh Telephone Company, which later merged
with the Be'l Telephone Company. At the time
of his death on November 17, 1933, General
Trexler was Chairman of the Board of the Lehigh
Portland Cement Company and served as Director
on the board of the National Power & Light Co.,
Pennsylvanmia Power & Light Company, Bell
Telephone Co. of Penna. and the Lehigh Valley
Raitroad Company.

He operated seven thousand acres of highly
productive farms, orchards, poultry farms, sheep
ranch and a commercial trout hatchery. He was
an advocate of wild hife conservation and his Game
Preserve with large herds of buffalo, elk and deer
has become a show place in the East.

However extensive his business and agnicultur-
al activities, these represented only a part of the
varied interests with which General Trexler

occupied himself.  During the mobilization of the
Pennsvlvama Navonal Guard troops for the
Mexican Border service i 1916 and agamn for
World War I, he was inducted into Federal service
and served as a Colonel in the Quartermaster
Corps and in both campaigns he was commended
by the Federal Government for his capable service
as an admmistrator.  He retired from milicary
service with the rank of Brigadier General on
Apnl 22, 1918.  For many vears he was president
of the Board of Trustees of the Allentown State
Hospital, a Trustee of the Sacred Hear: Hospital
in Allentown and the St. Luke's Hospital at
Bethlehem. He was a member of the first Board
of Trustees of the Allentown Hospital. He was
also a Trustee of Lehigh Umversity, Muhlenberg
and Frankhin & Marshall Colleges, which latter
college conferred upon hun the honorary degree
of Doctor of Laws. General Trexler served for
many vears as Chairman of the Allentown Cit
Planning Comnussion and gave valuable assist-
ance and financial aid in the development of the
Little Lehigh Parkway and West Park.

During their lifetime, the welfare of human-
kind was his and Mrs. Trexler's constant solicitude
and objective and by their wills this philanthropy
is perpetuated fov the use, benefit and enjoyment
of the present and of future generations.
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Allentown: A

Brief History

Mrervitne J. Boyer
Secretary, Lehigh County Iistorical Society

Over two hundred vears ago i this part of

Penn's Woods and south of the present confines
of the City of Allentown, land was decded to
William Penn and his bers inexchange for a
few  guns, coats, blankets, and
the north and compuasing the present site of
Allentown, as well as what 1s now Lehigh County,
the arca was deeded in 1730 by twenty-three
Indian chiefs of the five grear nations to John,
Thomas, and Richard Penn, sons of Willium
Penn.
items, including shoes and buckles, hats, shirts,
knives, scissors, combs, needles, looking glasses,
rum, and pipes. Tweney vears later, however
at LFaston, a Delaware chief, Teedyv-u-scung,
stamped his foot upon the carth and sad che
reason his people warred aganst the white people
was that this ground was his inhentance and had
been taken from him by fraud.  Down through
the vears arrowheads, fish spears, scrapers, and
other implements, found within the present area
of Allentown and on the island in the Lehigh,
verify that this was the red man’s home and
hunting ground.  Several of thewr mamn trals
crossed this county though there 1s no record
of any large Indian town here.

A Hunting and Fishing Lodge

The founder of Allentown, William  Allen,
acquired this area from Thomas Penn after a
survey in 1739. Twelve vears earlier a tract in
the present Monroe county had also been surveyed
for him.  This man, whom Allentomans will
always honor, was an influential and wealthy
Philadelphia merchant, iron-master, land specu-
later, ship-owner, mavor of Philadelphia, assem-
blyman, junst, and philanthropist.  He enter-
tained his Philadelphia friends at the beautiful
junction of the west branch of the Delaware (now
the Lehigh) and the Littde Lehigh with the
Jordan in a log house erected as a hunting and
fishing lodge. This was the first house built on
Allen’s tract of 5000 acres. Its location was given
on a draft of a road laid out in 1753 from Easton
to Reading. The previous vear, 1752, the county
of Northampton was erected and named by

ketdes, To

The price was much higher: hundreds of

Thomas Penn i a lecter to Colomal Governor
James Hamilton (Allen’s brother-in-law), in honor
of Thomas Penn’s father-in-law who hived
Northamptonshire,  England.  This early road
1o the west passed by Allen’s log house where
once were entertained  John Penn and Governor
Hamilton, and  extended  westward along  the
present Union and Jackson streets in this iy

The Original Town Plan

Though cighteen vears carlier a few permanent
stone houses had been bwile to the north, as
along the Jordan i 1744, William Allen did not
lav out as a town the choicest portion of his vast
To it he officially gave the
Viewers appointed in

acreage unul 1762,
name  “Northampton”.
that vear by the Court at Easton reported that
they had faid out a road from Whitehall town-
ship to “the new town called Northampton.”
The onginal plan cut up the town into forty-two
blocks or a total of 756 lots, usually sixty feet
wide, and extending from our present Fourth
to Tenth and Liberty to Unmion streets.  Seventh
street was then named “Allen” on the plan. This
street was a ink in the road from the Blue moun-
tains to join the King's Highway to Philadelphia
from Bethlehem.  Other streets lmd out were:
Hamilton, 1 honor of the brother-in-law, Govern-
or James Hamilton, Margaret, now Fifth; Wilham,
Sixth; James, Eighth: Ann, Ninth; Andrew,
Linden; John, Walnue; in honor of the founder’s
children.  Turner street was named in honor of
the founder’s business partner, Joseph Turner;
Chew street, for Benjammin Chew; Gordon, for
Sir Patrick Gordon, a former colomal governor.

Here a dozen or more houses were built by

July 1762, one a stone house at 107 North

Seventh, today a part of a business establishment
on the same site. At the end of that year the
assessment list named thirteen persons as resi-
dents. Two years later twenty-eight taxable
persons were listed.  The town had twenty-
nine houses i 1765. One vear later the list
shows how these residents earned a hiving: five

(Continued on Page 13)
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TROUT HALL: Home of Allentown's founder. William Allen: now restored in Allen Park as muscum for Lehigh County Hisronical Society,
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(Continued from Page 13)

were tatlors; four, laborers; three, joiners; three,
innkeepers; two each, masons, shopkeepers,
bakers, and shoemakers; and one each, a potter,
carpenter, cooper, wagoner, smith, locksmith,
butcher.  Four were “poor”. It may be inter-
esting to note there was no policeman.

A Frontier Refuge

In the Fall of 1763 this town was crowded
with hundreds of refugees, men, women and
children, who fled from the nosth when a band
of Indians made & murderous attack upon the
inhabitants of what is now Whitehall township.
Fortunately Colonel James Burd, famous builder
of military roads and defense forts, was in town
and orgamzed a company of twenty-five men for
defense.  He owned property in the town and
at one time dnlled for water planning to settle
his family herve, but changed s plans wishing
not to expose his family to the dangers from the
“faithless Barbarians in the best frontier place
in this Province’.  After participating in many
Indian disputes and much travel from one out-
pest to another he returned to cvilian life n
Lancaster in 1764,

Within the first vear two log churches were
built in Northampton: one, the oldest, Zion
Reformed, famous for providing a haven for the
Liberty Bell fifteen vears later when the British
occupied Philadelphia; and the other, St. Paul’s
Evangelical Lutherian, where todayv in a basement
crypt repose the remains of one of the founder’s
grand-danghters, Margaret  Elizabeth  (Mrs.
William Tilghman).  These churches were joint
houses of worship for the Reformed and Lutheran
congregatict.s. The services were held exclusively
in the German language and efforts to obtain
English preaching were not made until 1820.

The Founder’s Son
Takes Over

Colonel David Deshler, later to
prominent as a forage master during the Revolu-
tion, lived here until 1783 and operated a grist
mill on the Little Lehigh. In 1767 William
Allen’s son, James, became the proprietor of
“Northampton Town”, as it was sometimes
designated. He had been a youth of twenty
studying law in London in 1762 when his father
founded Allentown. The father deeded to the

become

son 3,338 acres in and about the town.  The
deed was acknowledged before George Tavlor,
then Justice of the Peace, later a signer of the
Declaration  of Independence, whose country
home is today preserved as an historical land-
mark on the cast bank of the Lehigh at Catasau-
qua. It may be noted in passing that the father
and founder, William Allen, was a widower when
he Lnd out Allentown.  As carly as 1750 he had
established his country home ar Moo Ay’
a mansion on forev-seven acres at Germantown
where the Lutheran Seminary is located today.

Three vears after acquiring this town from
his father, James in 1770 buile a substanual
stone mansion which he named “Trouc Hall” in
honor of the trout in the nearby streams.  This
mansion now houses the hibrary and museum of
The Lehigh County Historical Society, in Allen
Park, Fourth and Walnut streets. We can form
some idea of the beauty of the surroundings and
the nearby Lehigh river from a German traveler
who wrote: ““. .. the banks of the Lehigh . .. with
a magical beaury show united every charm of a
delectable region.  Almost all the finest American
shrubs and trees push forward to lend the scene
heightened grace, their branches flung far over
the river and shadows cast . . . The Lehigh river
is . . . a soft, clear, pure stream, flowing over a
rocky bottom.” Soon war clouds threatened this
peaceful scene as elsewhere in the American
colonies.  William Allen himself in 1763 had de-
laved passage of the Stamp Act during his visit
with his two daughters to England. The bill
was then before Patliament «nd Allen used his
influence and that of other influentnial person-
ages in the House of Commons to oppose it.

The Dilemma of Loyalty

Back home here Wuiiam, his family, and
friends sided with the colonies, though it is stated
that in 1775 he donated a quanuty of cannon
shot to the Council of Safety, which body “re-
turned thanks for his generous donation”; but
he preferred to maintain union with Great
Britain and as a member of the Assembly labored
to that end. However, after that memorable
Fourth of Julv decision, he secluded himself. He
still regarded himself as a loyal subject of his
King and became convinced that the leaders of

) (Continued on Page 16)
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resistance to an unconstitutional act had other
motives than his i opposing the Brinsh numistry,
that a spirit of Rebellion was unnecessary. In
a lengthy letter The American Crisis (1774), he
made proposals to avoid open conflict.  He re-
tired from the Assembly in 1776 and died a
lovalist four vears later. His son, James, while
residing at Trout Hall during the early months
of the war saw thousands of wagons pass his
door, wnung in his diary: “The road from
Easton to Reading, by my house, 1s now the most
travelled v America.”  But he was subject to

suspicion as a lTory.

At Trout Hall early one morning a guard of

soldiers with fixed bavonets had arrested him n
December, 1776, taken him to Philadelphia and
placed him on parole on condition he stay within
six miles of that citv. s brothers, John, An-
drew, and William placed themselves cither under
the protection of or jomed the Brniash army.
His sister, Anne, was the wife of John Penn,
grandson of William Penn.  Her husband was
confined at Fredericksburg, Virgmia, because he
refused to sign a parole.

In December, 1777, James Allen rode to
Valley Forge and dined at headquarters with
General Washington. From the General he pro-
cured a pass for his family to enter Philadelphia,
then occupied by the Briush. In February, 1778,
he remained there never to return to Trout
Hall, although he wrote he preferred to live here
had he guarantees of security in person and
property. During October and November, 1777,
he related how he had ‘“‘remained at Trout Hall
a calm spectator of the Civil War, but occasicnally
gave great offence to the violent Whigs in North-
ampton by entertaining the regular (British)
officers, our prisoners, and was often threatened
on that account.” He died in September of the
following year having willed his estate at North-
ampton (Allentown) to his children. His widow
later married United States Senator John
Lawrence of New York, and resided in Trout
Hall for some ume.

An Arsenal of Independence

After slightly more than a decade of growth,
Allentown had in its founding family of Allens
staunch opponents of the cause of independence.
However, all during the war the people of the

town were intensely patriotic and supplied the
continental army with supplies, military stores,
gramn, forage, horses, ind wagons. On David
Deshler’s  waterwheel-powered  grindstone  bay-
onets were ground.  The accounts show that up
to January, 1779, seven pistols, 2,657 muskets,
2,522 bavonets, and 83 rifles were dehvered from
the armourer’s stores here. The correspondence
of deputy quartermaster General  Jacob Waeiss,
who later Lnd our Waissport and was one of the
orgamzers of the Lehigh Coal Mine Company,
written from the stores depoe at Easton to Davad
Deshler, who in 1764 had opened the first store
in Allentown, shows the important service render-
ed by this community.  Through the town’s
streets were led the army’s fatagued and underfed
horses to be wintered among the farmers in the
arca. Weunded soldiers were cared for in the
homes of citizens and in Zion Reformed Church,
the bell of which, now hanging todayv in a small
tower of thirteen stones, rang out for independence
and s revered as Allentown's Liberty Bell. Hess-
ian pnsoners were held here for a oome near the
foot of Gordon street.

Post War Trade and Travel

At the close of the Revolution the life of Allen-
town resumed its normal growth.  The ferry
across the Lehigh continued to operate as the east-
ern exit to Bethlehem until, after two unsuccessful
attempts to organize and finance a bridge project
since 1797, the frst bridge, a chain bridge, was
opened to travel in 1814, The flood of 1841
swept away this first bridge, when a covered
wooden toll bridge was erected, only to be swept
away, midnight, 1862,

By the time of the first census, 1790, Allen-
town had a population of 486. which increased
to 710 by 1810. It may be assumed, however,
that economic affairs were not in good shape.
The cost of living had sky-rocketed and continen-
tal money was worthless. In the town, in 1781,
sugar was twelve dollars a pound; coffee, twenty
dollars; tea, seventy-five dollars a pound; a
spelling book, twenty dollars; a paper of pins,
two dollars. Three years ecarlier the milicary
workers and the saddlers had gone on a strike for
higher rations.

(Continued on Page 19)



A

s g
e

A R T A AT

e e A 15nich B A

RAILROADS AT ALLENTOWN: Lesticn Vareky Devor, fop left; Cenrrar Ratiroan Statian, top right; Rouss House, "orrom left; Trains 18 Locar YARDs, bottom right.



81

COMMUNICATIONS CENTERS: CarL-CHRONICLE NEWSPAPERS, fop /eft; MasTs OF ONE oF FIvE Rapio st

bottom left; A Brrr TrrepHone Coo Swrresnroarn, boltom



ALLENTOWN: A BRIEF HISTORY

(Continued fron: Page 106)

Soon travel by road and river was nuproved.
Before the war by legislative act navigation on
the Lehigh was to have been improved. A lottery
granted by legislative act in 1798 to finance the
Lehigh Navigation  Company’s  program  was
operated here in 1803 and three Allentomans held
the right tickees for a $5.10 prize cach. In 1806
several hundred bushels of coal passed through
town on an “ark” to a consumer-resisting market
in Philadelphia. Durning the next” vears many
“arks” were wrecked.  Handbills in Enghsh and
German were distrnibuted to explain the mode of
burning coal.  After learning its use the smiths
of Allentown and along the river to the north
salvaged thew coal during low water for their
forges. By 1829 the canal was completed, ample
evidence of which exists today i towpath, lock,
and locktender’s house remains within the city
lmits.  The first  packee-boat, the  “Swan™,
Capt. W. E. Wells, with passengers in gala mood
satled by in July of that yvear and scheduled 1egu-
lar tips. Canal boaung as a business ceased in
1931 and the canal abandoned after the flood
of 1942, Ruates of toll per ton were fixed in 1829
at 134 cents per ton for every six feet of lockage
on himestone, manure, clay, stone, carth, between
Allentown and Bethlehem; be .ween Mauch Chunk
and Allentown, 341, cents per ton.  However,
the upstream rate  between  Bethlechem  and
Allentown was seven cents.  In the canal super-
intendent’s diary at the close of 1917, to indicate
some of the reasons for the canal’s failure, we
“This was one Hell of a vear. Labor
No boatmen. food high -
. Hell has no

read:
scarce, high water.
cost sheet going wrong way .
terror; can’t be any worse than trving to run a
damned old ditch like this.”

County Scat and Courthouse
Problems

Population growth to the north, east, and west
of Allentown had been steady in the decades
prior to the improvement of canal transportation.
Pennsylvania German settlers had migrated north
from Philadelphia in large numbers. As early
as 1792, because of this growth in population,
the Allen family had made an unsuccessful
effort to establish a separate county with Allen-
town as the county seat. The legislature was
petitioned but the Penn heirs defeated the move-

ment. Mrs. John Lawrence, the former Mrs.
James Allen, wrote to Judge Peter Rhoads here
requesting him to determine for her whether the
people of Bethlehem in case of a division preferred
to be included in that (division) of Easton or
of Allentown.  “lt will be necessary,” she wrote,
“that | should be acquamted with rhe determin-
ation of the Moravians before the lines which
are to divide the counties can be determined.”
la 1811, dunng Governor Simon Snyder’s admin-
istration, Allentown was incorporated as a bor-
ough. A clause mn the act then provided that the
town should be named the “Borough of North-
ampton.”  The name was offictally changed to
Allentown i 1838,

When the Assembly erected Lehigh County
in 1812 the lines of the new county were set
“begimning at the Bethlehem hne where 1t joins
the river Lehigh,” thence north; thus explaining
that as Bethlehem grew to the westward, residents
of that commumty today transace their legal
business at the courthouse in Allentown. The
questions of the location of the courthouse in
Allentown caused some controversy at first.
Millerstown, now Macungie, had been proposed,
as had Guthsville to the north. Some advocated
that the pubhc buildings of the county should
be erected upon the Market Square in Allentown.
However, the choice for the present site was
determined  when  Wilham  Tilghman,  James
Allen's son-in-law, sold to the first county com-
missioners  for the sum one hundred dollars
two lots on the northwest corner of Hamilton and
Margaret (now Fifth) streets. The deed pro-
vided for an annual rental of four dollars which
curiously was however never to be ‘“‘demanded
or received by the party of the first part, his
heirs,” etc.  In the same vear a lot was deeded
to the commissioners on the southeast corner
of Margaret and Andrew (now Fifth and Linden)
streets for a county jail.

To the choice thus made almost one hundred
and forty years ago we caa attribute much of
the prominence of Allentown today as the legal
and business center of the Lehigh Valley. The
first sessions of the Courts of Common Pleas and
General Quarter Sessions were held in the house
of George Savitz, a two-story stone structure,
later to become the Hotel Allen. The following

(Continued on Page 21)
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vear, 1813, court sessions were held on the
sccond floor of the jail built on the site mentioned
above, where sessions were held unul completion
of the courthouse in the summer of 1718, The
huge lock and key of chat first jail are among the
prizecd muscum picces at Trout Hall today.
The present jinl on Fourth street was bult
1869.  For the first ten months of the county’s
existence, or up to January 1, 1813, the toral
expenses were $368.82, provided out of a donation
of one thousand dollars made by James Green-
leaf, son-in-law of  James Allen. Taxes and
assessments were low i those davs.  Borough
taxes were one mill and a half. The total tax
duplicate levied in this town for the year 1811
was $187.431,. For 1813 the county tax total
fevied was $569.35.  In 1814 ordinances were
passed prohibnting the practice of allowing any
kind of horned cattle to remam at mght on the
streets and allevs from April Ist to December
Ist. Fines were specified of one dollar for ranning
at large of horses, seventy-five cents for hogs,
and fifty cents for geese.

Musicians and Bonfires

At this time the borough was again excited
by the call to arms. The War of 1812 was waged.
The British bombarded Baltimore and the capitol
was burned at Washington.  On the marketplace
in the borough of Northampton two military
companies met i full uniform i response to
Governor Snyder’s call, while another company
of regulars passed through town to the defense
of the sca coast. A local paper reported the
movement of hght infantry (the Northampton
Blues) and rifle companies through here to
Philadelphia.  After three months’ service the
Blues returned and attended Lutheran church
services in full uniform.  None of these companies
had been in combat but they had loyally answered
their country’s call.  When news arrived of
Jackson’s victory in 1815, the borough was the
scene of a great demonstration by cannon salute,
bonfires, torchlight processions headed by
band of musicians.

It is interesting to note that the Allentown
Band, the oldest civie band organization in exist-
ence in the United States today, was not then
organized. A band from Bethlehem headed the
parade referred to above,  Several bands existed

in Lehigh county according to newspaper accounts
of 1825. The Allentown Band had evidently
been organized some time prior to 1828 for the
first recorded mention of it i1s found in the local
German newspaper, the Friedens-Bothe of July
3, 1828, where it is mentioned as the “Northamp-
ton mihtarischen Musik-Bande”.  The press
notice announced on that date that tickets were
on sale in the band hall at twenty-five cents each
for refreshments to be served the following day
at Fried’s Spring in celebration of the Fourth
of July.

A similar celebration had been held the previ-
ous vear, the news accounts naming the many
sclections {marches, etc.) plaved by a band, not
named, and stating that among many other toasts
given was this: “Unser Caunty.  Das Paradies
von Pennsvivamen: Unser Stadt.  Stark am
Zunchmen, moege sie es gfernerhin thun” (Our
county.  The paradise of Pennsylvama: Our
town. Increasing rapidly, may it continue to
increase).  For many subsequent yvears this
community took 1es Fourth of July celebrations
seriously. At daybreak all the bells were rung,
twenty-four shots were fired from the cannon on
Hickory Hill, and the Allentown Band playving
“Kricgs-Mustk™ marched to Worman’s Spring
at the end of Lawrence street.

In 1892 the raembers of the Allentown Band
personally buile vhe first outdoor shell at their
music  stand in the fur grounds.  The noisy
bovs of town had disturbed the concerts by their
velling. Twenty-five years later, prior to radio,
this band serenad:d duning a Liberty Bond
campaign parade the manager of a local hotel.
He, by long distance telephone, entertained the
manager of a New Vork hotel with the band’s
music.  Other more recently orgamzed local
musical institutions, their history, and their
contributions to the cultural growth of Allentown
are beyvond the scope of this Brief History.

Sidewalks and A
Markethouse

After the brief interlude of the War of 1812,
the borough’s council passed ordinances requiring
lot-owners to set up curbstones and fix gutters.
For the first time sidewalks were to be provided
by the owners.  Streets running north-south

(Continued on Page 22
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were to be extended northward and owners
notified to remove all tumber standing thereon,
but any crops growing therein were not to be
harmed until after harvest. Despite the ordinanc-
es street improvement lagged for about fifteen
years until complaints to council led to grading
and the appointment of a chief engineer. The
names of the streets were changed to their present
designation 1n 1853. By the ordinance of that
date houses were also to be numbered, beginning
with number one at Center Square. In those
days there were only three wards, Lehigh, North
and South wards.

After 1817, when a markethouse was bult,
housewives took their market baskets to Center
Square and filled them with the produce of the

farm. Wednesdays and Saturdays were market
davs. In 1832 hay-scales were erected on the
Square.  For thirty-one years Centre Square

was the marketplace of this town. After the
fire of 1848 the markethouse was located on the
present site of City Hall.  Financial transactions
during this period took place in the Northampton
Bank across the street from the markethouse.
As the first bank here, it opened its doors in 1814
and for twenty-eight vears until its fulure n
1842 served the commumty. lts failure cnippled
the economic status of the community and the
fortunes of many residents. Seven other banks
were opried, but by 1877, when the W, H.
Blumer & Co. Bank failed, most of them had
suffered from a lack of public confidence in
savings banks. The present Allentown National
Bank was chartered in 1855 as the Allentown

Bank.

Stage-Coaches and The Malil

At the dawn of the year 1855 Allentown had
no railroad outlet. Five years later it had two,
the Lehigh Valley and the East Pennsylvania,
and it had a third, the Allentown and Auburn,
under construction. Up to this time stage-coach-
es had arrived and departed on regular schedules
as bus lines do today. The stage-coach was also
known as the mail-coach. In 1812, its terminus
was located on Allen (Seventh) street at the
Sign of the Rainbow. In 1828 it left Allentown
at 5 a.m. daily, except Saturdays. The passengers
breakfasted at Hellercown, dined at Willow
Grove, and arrived at Philadelphia in the after-

noon. The fare one way was three dollars.  Sever-
al coach companies operated here from tme to
time.  Accounts of the time relate how dnivers
and passengers often experienced rough going.
On one occasion in the flood of 1839 the driver of
the mail-coach was drowned in attempting to
reach Allentown. The history of the local muil
service 1s beyond the scope of this sketch, but it
may be stated briefly that prior to 1803 residents
here received their mail at Bethlehem.  In that
vear a post-office was established in the Compass
and Square Hotel, later the Hotel Allen.  George
Savitz, whose portrait hangs in Trout Hall, was
the first postmaster.  Philatelic cover-collectors
may be surprised to know that in 1862 and for
seven vears subsequently an ofhce existed on
Front street known as the Allentown lron Works
Post Office. The Mountainville office was open
from 1870 to 1872 and again from 1876 to 19%X).
Prior to annexation another office had been
maitained at Rittersville.

The First Defenders

Within the period of the borough's history,
two wars disturbed the quiet of this community
of 8,000 population (1860). ‘The Mexican War
ended and 1in the summer of 1848 parades and
demonstrations  welcomed the returmng  local
soldiers.  Prior to the Civil War many local in-
dependent military companies had been organ-
ized. They were colorful units both as to their
names and their uniforms. They held competitive
drills and sometimes jousted politically, as did
the Lehigh Artillerists who split into the Harrison
Guards and the Van Buren Artillerists. At the
time of the outbreak of the War of Secesston the
local Allen Infantry immediately offered its ser-
vices to the Governor of the State. Never had
a group of local soldiers received a finer send-off
than this umt. The citizens gave them all
farewell dinner at the Eagle Hotel on the north-
west corner of Seventh and Hamilton Streets,
placed a five-dollar state bank-note under cach
soldier’s plate, and packed for cach a box of
clothing. Dispatched by rail to defend the Capi-
tal city, Washington, they met with a mob’s
bitter reception in Baltimore, but arrived to pre-
vent the fall of the Capital, and became known
as “The First Defenders”.  President Lincoln

(Continued on Page 23)
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Home of the Slst A.A. Brigade

and 213th Group, successors

to nation’s “'First Defenders”.

V. F. W, HOME

Greater Allentown  Post 13,
once of nation’s largest, meets
here.

AMERICAN LEGION
HOME

Front of Herbert Paul Lenez
Post 29, “birthplace of the
40 ¢¢ 8,” Legion honor society.
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PHOLBL HOME

Showing new wing (now
completed) under construc-
tion.

RED CROSS

Lehigh  County  Chapter
House, located on Walnut
Street, west of Sixth.
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GOOD SHEPHERD
HOME

Lutheran Church sponsor-
cd, it works for rchabilica-
tion of crippled regardless
of creed or race.
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personally  greeted  them.  During  their  rail
tansfer in Baltmore all theie Allentown  gift
boxes were stolen.  Again their local friends sent
supphes of clothing and food of which they were
badly in want. They were quartered twelve days
in the Capitol building, after which they per-
formed guard duty elsewhere.

It 1s not possible to retate here the military
history of this period and the wholehearted local
support given the Union cause. The many flags
that wave over the graves of G.A.R. veterans in
Allentown cemeteries cach Memonal Day ade-
quately bespeak their many services. Some of
their bavonets, swords, muskets, drams, and
bugles may be seen at Trout Hall today.  The
citizens of Key Wese, Flonda, when subiect to
Umion Army occupation, in gratitude for courteous
treatment from an Allentown  otheer, Colonel
T. H. Good, presented him with a gold-placed
sword, also exhibited at Trout Hall.

Smularly on display s the Allen House
Register for those davs recording the names of
war-time visitors to Allentown.  The following
arc worth noting: General W, Scott: G, Bunther,
U.S. Quartermaster, U.S. Arsenal;  Goverror
Curom, Camp Washington, Easton; John Ross,
Choctaw Naton; Major Amos Etunger, Allen-
town; Sergeant B F. Lerch, Baxters Fire Zoaves;
General Geo. B, McClellan, Virginia, U.S. AL
six_ men for dinner, Bucktaml Rifle Regiment,
P.RNV.C and the names of many men, followed
by the clerk’s note--“drafted”.  Some registered
with a sense of humor.  The entry for June 27th,
1861, reads: “Stephen A, Douglas - Chicago”'.
But the “lictle giant” had died twenty-five davs
On the same date “Wm. H. Seward” is

On October 13th, Colonel D. ]. k.

Several dis-

carher.
entered.
Deshler, “Hell-ertown” is a guest.
tinguished foreign guests spent a day or so here,
November §, 1862, a representative of the Athletic
Base Ball Club of Philadelphia, was a guest.
In June previous, Sanford’s Opera  Troupe,
twelve men, including Sanford in person, staved
here and performed in the Odd Fellows Hall. A
footnote entry for June 4, 1862, reads: “Great
Flood on the Lehigh (Bridges all gone along the
Lehigh from Mauch Chunk to Easton)”.  In
terms of the hotel business of today it may be
sid that teday a guest is only a number, identi-
fied by a key, but in the carly inns and hostelries

a personal hospitable relationship existed between
landlord and guest that has been lost.

A Center of Education

During the Civil War vears edurcation in
Allentown, then stll a borough, was with much
dithculty carried on in the public schools and
the three private schools, the Allentown Academy
(founded i 1823), the Allentown Senmunary
(founded 1848), and the Allentown Collegiate
and Military Institute, founded in the second
last vear of that war.  Muhlenberg College and
the Allentown College for Women (now Cedar
Crest College) were founded in 1867, ‘T'wo vears
later the Allentown Business College was estab-
lished. The first school of homeopathic medical
instruction in the world had been opened n
Allentown 1 1835, The decade of the sixties
saw the termination of the educational service
to the community of the first three mmsarutions
mentioned above and the birth of the three lateer
institutions which have enriched the cultural
and busimess hfe of Allentown.  We have come a
long way since 1774 when Francis Tuiner taught
here, our first schoolmaster of record. When
the decade of the sixties opened the Allentown
High School was but two vears old.

The Town Becomes A City

The borough hfe of Allentown ceased March
12, 1867, when a legislative act incorporated it as
a city.  Dunng the next fortyv-five vears ten
annexations indicate the rapid growth of the
community since its founding a century and half
carlier.  In 1913 the bicameral form of govern-
ment, consisting of a select council of fourteen and
a common council of twenty-cight members, was
replaced by a single council of five members in-
cluding the mavor.  Allentown had now arrived
at full matuniey poliically, It had grown com-
mercizlly and industrially since the Givil War.
It had a numerous citizenry who had not only
served in previous wars, but who as members
of the Pennsvlvania National Guard had assisted
in quelling the rnot at the Carnegie Steel Mills in
1892, the disturbances in the Hazleton coal
district in 1897, and had restored order in the coal
fields to the north in 1900 and 1902, During
the Spanish-American War the first company of

(Centinued on Page 20)
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infantry mustered from Pennsylvania into the
national service was our local Co. B, 4th Regi-
ment, National Guard.  As a munmcipalicy e
had vet to weather the fevenish drafung and
enlisting, the execution of war contracts, and the
Victory Loan bond campaigning of World War
I. Ttis quite fitting that our national Flag Day
observance should have had an Allentown mn-
ception,

Printers and The Local
Press

While 1t s impossible to recount the full
history of this city here, particularly to bring 1t
up to the present, due credit to the social unity
of all groups, whether of various national, rehg-
tous, or racial origin, must be accorded the press
and the many publishers thereof.  The carliest
newspaper in Allentown, as were many of its
competitors and successors, was printed in the
German language to meet the needs of the large
German clement.  As early as 1807 Carl Brueck-
mann had founded a weckly Allentown paper.

P HAM{ VS

CORMER

The Unabhaengiger Republikaner  (Democratic)
was - established in 1810, Der Friedens Bote
(independent) was the fourth oldest 1n circulation.
From 1807 to about 1900 the German press of
this commumty not only gave cohesion to its
readers in the form of weekly and dinly news-
papers but in the diverse products of textbooks,
hvmnals, birth and bapusmal certificates, calen-
dars, catechisms, ABC books, ete. Tt was, of
course, predominantly Lutheran.  No less than
sixty German publishers up to 1900 afforded
cultural umey to the thnfey German residents.
The English press has since been equally influ-
ential, its earliest in appearance having been the
Lehich Centinel, 1817, Since 1890, after the
original  German  mgrations had  ended, other
immigrant  groups  made  Allentown
their home.  The iron, steel, textile, and other
industries brought them here.  As in the case of
the Pennsyvlvama German, they too have conp-
tributed to the cosmopohtan character of Allen-
town by their art, their musie, and their folk-

national

lore.
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Ajlentown firemen have annual spring training programs; this
is hook and ladder practice.

Top righ*: ) ) .
A *“quad” truck, among the newer picces of cquipment in
Fire Department.

Lower right: o ) ) .
Allentown'v police must undergo public inspection twice cach
year,
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§ MOST FAMILIAR LANDMARK, the Pennsylvania Power and Light Co. office building
at Ninth and Hamilton Streets, seen from the air.



Industrial Allentown

by

Chamber of Commerce of Allentown

Interwoven in the development of Allentown
as an industrial center are stories of the founding
of transportation systems, the search for basic
materials in the earth and the constant urge to
produce better products.  Combined with the
city’s strategic location in reference to major
markets, these factors have made Allentown
sne of the most important industrial cities 1n
the state.

A community which produces a variety of
manufactured products such as Allentown does
not suffer from the sudden, and sometimes vio-
lent fluctuations in earning power which com-
monly affect cities dependent upon o single
large industry. .

Diversification  provides stability and  this
sense of security prompted industrial workers to
establish roots here for then families, making
it one of the leading home-owning communities
in the nation.

Today the city is the center of the third largest
mdustrial production area in the state, being
surpassed only by Philadelphia and Pictsburgh,
and 1ts plants produce manyv hundreds of difter-
ent atems, cach contributing its share to the
stabilized earning power of the community.

While the early German settlers brought with
them large quantities of equipment and supplies
for clearing and tilling the land they were not
self-suthcient and their first need was the estab-
lishment of communication with other communi-
ties where they could procure supplies from time
to time,

The Early Days

The first established communication was
made in 1763, when a stage coach route was in-
augurated from the Sun Inn, Bethlehem, to
Philadelphia. Local residents forded the Lehigh
river and journeyed either by horse or afoot to
Bethlehem, where they procured transportation
to Philadelphia.

The only other contacts established were
those with the trappers and residents of small
communities north of the city, who came to
Allentown by boat to trade pelts and procure

supphes. The traffic on the river was so great
that i 1771 the General Assembly declared the
Lehigh river a common highway. It was not
until 1766 that a ferry was established across
the river a short distance below the site of the
present  bridge.

In 1764, v addition to a shopkeeper, the busi-
nessmen of the city included such artisans as a
potter, a tailor, a mason, a carpenter, a locksmith,
a cooper, a wagoner, a blacksmith, a butcher, a
jomer and a baker.

Oddly, the community’s first industrial plants
were thrust upon it.  During the Revolutionary
War, leaders of the contuinental forces found
it expedient to transfer a carendge making plant
from Philadelphia to prevent its capture and
destruction by the British.  Shortly after the
Liberty Bell and the bells of Christ Church were
brought here for concealment in Zion Reformed
Church the cartridge plant was brought here n
the same manner as the bells.

Later in the same vear a plant was opened
here for the repair of arms, and also a plant for
the manufacture of saddles and scabbards for
bavonets.  ‘The Pennsylvama German rifles used
by Washington’s sharpshooters were hand-turned
in Allentown. It is recorded that there were
12,000 stands of rifles on hand in Allentown at
the close of the war. The plants were abandoned
after the war and the people of the httle settle-
ment recurned to normal life.

Necessity Forded Expansion

Necessity  brought about the eatliest of
Allentown’s own industrial operations. The high
cost of transportation and the long waits for
supplies together with the demand for more
housing prompted David Deshler, the city’s first
shopkeeper, to open a saw mill in 1782, Other
purely local needs prompted the opening of other
industrial operations and by 1814 the hst of
industrial plants in the city included flour mills,
saw mills, two saddle makers, a tannery and a
tan yard, a woolen mill, a card weaving plant,
two gunsmiths, two tobacconists, two clock-

(Continued an Puge 32)
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makers and two printers.  One of the printers
was Schlechter’s and this establishment has
operated under the control of the same family
in Allentown since 1810.

The actual foundation for the city’s indus-
trial development was laid by the discovery of
coal thirty miles north of the city i 1792 and
the discovery of iron ore near Shimersville
in 1809.

Immediately following the discovery of coal,
the Lehigh Coal Mine Company was formed
locally and it acquired 10,000 acres of coal lands
in Carbon County. The land remained idle for
several years because of a lack of transportation
facilities.

In 1798 the Lehigh Navigation Company was
formed for the development of transportation
on the river. Crude bear trap dams were con-
structed to change water levels when needed
and in 1806 several hundred pounds of coal were
loaded on an “ark” and transported to Pliladel-
phia. In 1827 work was started on the construc-
tion of the canal which was to prove a major
factor in transportation of freight in this area
until early in the present century. The coal
and navigation companies were merged later to
form the Lehigh Navigaton Coal Company.

With coal and lumber available and transpor-
tation constantly improving, the community grew
rapidly and needs for various items increased.
A carniage making plant was opened by Charles
Scattergood in 1820 and a cabinet making shop
was opened by Isaac Erdman in 1830. The clays
about the city furnished the material for the first
brick-making plant in 1838. Meanwhile, beds
of iron ore had been discovered in the hills sur-
rounding the city and a furnace was constructed
in 1846 for the production of pig iron by the
Allentown Iron Company. The furnace was
opened in 1847 under the supervision of Samuel
Lewis, an expert in iron production, and this led
to the opening of plants for a wide variety of
metal products.

A list of the industries in the city before
the Civil War discloses that there were plants
for the manufacture of agricultural implements,
railroad spikes, files, ornamental iron, guns: W.
F. Mosser’s axle plant founded in 1863, Abiel
Heilman’s boiler works founded in 1863, C. F.

Wolfertz's pen and pocket cutlery plant founded
in 1862, a forge shop, foundry and machine
shops, the Allentown Rolling Mills founded in
1860, cight brick yards, a saw mill, the Ailentown
Paint factory founded in 1860, two shoe factories,
last manufacturers and a piano factory together
with flour mulls, breweries and distilleries.  Allen-
town’s metal plants produced $121,680,500 worth
of products in 1947 while wages amounted to
$27,524.400.

The Allentown Rolling Mills was the parent
company for the present Aldrich Pump Company
which along with Heilman’s boiler works, the
Wolfertz Company  and  the  Allentown Pant
Company are still operating in the city.

Railroad Development

The manufacture of railroad spikes was the
direct result of the chartering of the Delaware,
Lehgh, Schuylkill and Susquehanna Railroad,
which later became the Lehigh Valley Railroad.
The charter was granted mn 1846 and the com-
pany was granted rights from Easton to Mahoning
Creek.  Before the charter was granted the
founders of the railroad had to prove defimtely
to the canal commissioners that the opening of
the road would not injure the operation of the
canal.  Actual construction work on the road
was not started until 1851 and late in 1855 four
locomotives were ordered and authonty given
for the erection of stations at Easton, Allentown
and Mauch Chunk. The railroad was placed in
operation in September of that year.  Connec-
tions for New York were made via the Central
Railroad of New Jersey and later connections
with Philadelphia were made via the Perkiomen
rarlroad which operated between Norristown and
Freemansburg.

The Central Railroad was not a factor in local
transportation until after the flood of 1802
which seriously damaged the canal. A charter
was granted to the Lehigh and Susquchanna
Railroad and it was given rights from White
Haven to Mauch Chunk and Easton. Later it
became the Central Railroad of Pennsylvanmia.

The Reading Lines entered the city soon
afterward and the Lehigh and New England
Railroad was completed to Bethlehem in 1861
but not extended to Allentown until 1912,

(Continued on Page .6)
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Allentown Paint Manufacturing Co.

Oldest Ready-Mixed Paint Manufacturing Company in America

Fstablished

in 1833

AN ESTABLISHMENT THAT HAS GROWN WITH ALLENTOWN AND LEHIGH COUNTY

D.-\Y after the clection of President James Buchanan,
a team from Wm, F. Mosser’s Foundry came to a
halt on North Lumber Street. On e was a small machine,
resembhing an ice cream freezer.
The duver stepped into a small building on the rear of
what now s the Grand F & W Silver Store and announced
“lake, here's vour paine ol
And so, Jacob Breingg, who had been making paint by
hand sinee 1855 added his first cquipment- an Allentown
product i design and manufacture,
Atter the Civil War, Alfred J. Breinig, his son, left Allen-
town to start a fervlizer plant in Brooklyn. No sooner
had the plant been buile when it was destroyed by fire,
Broken in spint, but no less venturesome, he returned to
Allentown and besceched his father to seck larger quarters
so that pamnts and fertlizers might be made under one
100f,
They then selected a site along the Seventh Street Pike
(ncar Helfrich’s Spring).  As they were building, Tilghman
G. Helfrich came, secking employment- - little dreaming
that some day he would head the encerprise.
'he same year that Allentown was incorporated—1867—
this business was incorporated under the names of Alfred
b Bremig and Tilghman G. Helfrich.  Already  ther
paint products had won public favor—in fact, there was
“ln"y onc other company making ready mixed paints at
this time.

In 1912 the business became known as the Allentown
Manufacturing Company with the following  officers:
Fidehman G, Helfrich, President; Paul E. Breinig, Viees
President; E. F. Horn, Sceeretary; and Alfred R. Helfrich
Preasurer. Tt was already a major industry in Allentown.
Ueged by an increasing demand, all efforts were concen-
tated on paints and in 1926, a larger factory site was
acquired in East Allentown (. Allen & Graham Sureets)

under the name of Allentown Paint Manufacturing
Company with the following officers: Fred B, Gernerd,
President: Alfred R Helfrich, Vice-President and Tseasurer
and H. W. Hecker, Seerctary.

In 1933, shortdy after the death of Alfred R. Helfrich,
M Gernerd, resigned, and the following otheers were
clected: William T, Frankenficld, President; John 1.
Helfrich, Viee-President; Clarence C. Hildebeidel, Teeas-
urer; and Ho W, Hecker, Seeretary,

The present Board of Directors of the Allentown Paint
Manufacwuring Company includes 1. G, Fenstermaker,
Prestdent; Robert A, Helfrich, Vice-President; Clarence
C. Hildebadel, Treasurer; Miles H. Frankenficld, Scere-
tary; and Mrs. Helen Horlacher.

In 1941, the Allentown Paint Manufacturing Company
opened its first retail store at 117 N. Seventh Street—-
Breinig's Color Bar.  Kenneth E. Feley, a faithful em-
ployee of the Company, was named manager.  Larger
quarters were needed, and in 1942 Bremig’s Color Bar
moved to its present spacious location at 940-42 Hamilton
Street.

Various color schemes, display methods, hghting and
business methods are tested at this store directly bene-
fiting the company’s hundreds of dealers scattered along
the casteen scaboard.

Several pages of pictures and a story on this operation
were |\ul)lishml last vear in the country’s leading paint
magae.

The citizens of Allentown and Lehigh County have been
instrumental an the growth and good-will of this time-
honored establishment.  The Allentown Paint Manu-
factunng Company shall always strive to maintain, and
if possible, to increase the high standard of quality for
which their products are known.
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LEHIGH PORTLAND CEMENT COMPANY

Duning  the Fall of 1897 a small group of
busimessmen an Alentown, Pennsvlivamia, under
the leadership of General Harry Co Trexler and
Colondd Edward M. Young, pooled their interests
to construct a cement miil at Ormrod just north
of the anve This was the modest beginning
of the Leligh Pordand Cement Company.

Thiough hard  work and  careful planning
those men bude a Company that todayv s not
onhy o lasting tiibute to their courage and per-
soveranee but a hiving example of the mfinite
opportuties of free enterprise in Amenca.

General Trexler served as the chief executive
othear of the Company from the Jate of s
mcorporation November 26, 1897, unul s
death on Nevember 17, 1933, first as President
and Tater as Chairman of the Board.  Colonel
Young was the First Viee-President for many
vears and an 1926 was elevated to the ofhice of
Presdent. He served in this capacity unal his
death on Apnil 26, 1932, when his son, Joseph S.
Young. was clected by the Board to succeed
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him. YOUNG BUILDING - 1930

It 1s of more than passing interest that three of the five members of the present Board of Directors
are sons or grandsons of these original Dirvectors. One might say that the Company today is sull under
the continuous direction and gudance of the founders.
[t is being run solely for the best interest of emplovees
stockholders, customers, and the pubhc alike.

Beginning with a production of only 200,000 barrcls
per vear the Company has grown from a local orgamza-
tion into a national msutution.  lts 14 manufactuning
plants in 11 different states now have an annual capacity
of 20,000,000. When the first barrel of cement was
manufactured at Ormrod in 1898, scarcely 100 men were
emploved. Today, there are 3,600 men and women on
the pay roll.  The original stockholders of the Company
numbered only 17---all residing in the Lehigh Valley.
Approximately 5,500 men and women, living in almost
every state in the Union, now own stock in the Company.

The headquarters of the Company ever since ivs in-
ception has been in the Young Building here in Allentown,
Traveling out of the home ofice and 14 district sales
ofhces, lehigh salesmen are selhing lLehigh Portland
Cement, Lehigh Early Strength Cement, Lehigh Mortar
Cement and Lehigh Air-Entraining Cement, throughout
most of the United States.

Today, the Lehigh Portland Cement Company is one
of the largest producers of cement in the United States
e o ) ~'i\‘ " ¢ N

S, —in fact one of the largest in the world.

ORIGINAL YOUNG BUILDING - 1898
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INDUSTRIAL ALLENTOWN

(Continued from Page 32)

Brick making (established i 1838) flourished
in the city until after World War 1, the clay
unearthed in various sections of the community
proving highly suitable for the manufacture of
building brick as well as fire bnick.

It 1s in connection with this industry that we
have first reference to the shipment of products
bevond the immediate confines of Lehigh county.
Shipments, apparently, were made by team, later
bv boat and then by rai.

The tanning of leather expanded with the
opening of the city’s first shoe factory by William
A. Roney in 1843 tor manufacturing women’'s
and girls’ shoes. Seven years later Henry Leh
opened his plant for manufacturing men’s shoes
and this firm supplied shoes for the Union Army
during the Civil War.  The two plants defintely
established the city as a shoe production center
and reports published in 1914 show that there
were ten factories producing $1,302,000 worth
of boots and shoes. Changes in the shoe manu-
facturing processes and other factors led to the
gradual closing of the plants.  Some of the
buildings were razed while those which remaned
were taken over by other manufacturing lines.

Gas Was Used In 1850

Gas for illuminatiun purposes was manufac-
tured here in 1850 when Dr. Wilham Danowsky
erected a small coal gas plant in his back vard
for making gas for his home. Later he laid zinc
mains on Hamilton Street between Seventh and
Eighth Streets to supply merchants and others
in the neighborhood. In 1852 he was granted a
charter for a gas company. For several years
gas was delivered to persons at a distance from
the plant in rubber or leather bags. The company
went into bankruptcy in 1877 and was sold to
a Philadelphia broker. The company was re-
organized in 1882 and incorporated as the Allen-
town Gas Company which was the predecessor
of the Allentown-Bethlehem Gas Company.

The Allentown Paint Company, established
prior to the Civil War, used pigments from the
soil in the area to produce its first paints and
was one of the first, if not the first, companies
in the nation to produce ready-mixed paints.

Cement Discovered

The last of the important discoveries of
natural resources affecting the city’s industnal

growth was in 1870, when David O. Savlor form-
ulated a process for the manufacture of Portland
The first plant was opened two vears
later at Coplav, where beds of the rock had been
uncovered, and since that time Allentown has
become the center of the world’s largest Portland
cement producing area.

cement,

Electricity was not produced locally unuil
1882 when Mr. Roney installed the firse electric
dyvnamo in this area and one of the first i the
world i his shoe factory at Penn and Maple
streets.
alter the opening of Edison’s famous Pearl Strect
station in New York, Mr. Ronev's dyvnamo
supplied current for a few arc highes, illuminating
Hanulton Street store fronts.  He incorporated
in 1886 as the Allentown Electric Light and
Power Comp-ny which later became a pare of
the Pennsylvama Power & Light Company when
a group of sinular small companies was merged.

In December of that vear, three months

While historical accounts do not reveal too
much information about the tobacco industry
locally there are reports of attempts to grow
tobacco i the county carly i the 19th century
and cgar making became an important business
in the community. The reports, which
published in 1914, show that there were 47 cigar
factortes in the aity and that they produced
1,446,000 in manufactured products.  The
manufacture of cigars resulted in the opening
of John Stevens’s Eagle Cigar Box factory in 1876
which was purchased by Dr. A. H. Ballict and
Walter Biery in 1900 and acquired by Dr. Balliet
in 1906. The plant was greatly expanded under
Dr. Balliet and in addition to cigar boxes pro-
duced other lines of wood products until ies
closing shortly before World War II.  Cigar
production in 1948 was valued at $4,716,500 and
wages amounted to $1,051,800.00.

Isaac Erdman opened a cabinet making shop
in 1830. We do not have any records of furniture
making after that unal 1872 when Dorney and
Berkemeyer opened a furniture factory which
was later expanded to handle the firm’s retail
trade in 1877 and became the C. A. Dornev
Furniture Company. This plant was followed bv
B. F. Schlegel’s in 1877 and the Yeager Furniture
Company in 1886, and the city has been a large
producer of furniture since that time.

(Continued on Page 41)
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ALLENTOWN...

a Pioneer in Electric Service

October 19, 1879, Thomas A. Edison, perfected
the world’s first practical incandescent lamp bulb
. the birth of the electric industry. Three
vears later, September 4, 1882, Edison put into
operation the first power plant in the world to
provide central station service, the Pearl Street
Station - New York City. Just three months
the miracle of electnicity ook place in

Mr. W AL Roney,

the first

Later ...
Allentown tor the first time.
a local shoe manufacturer :nstalled
clectric dyvnamo in the area. This ifant “plant”
was to supply arc-hght service to alluminate
several Hamilton Street store fronts. The results
were highly successful . .. the public most enthu-
stastic.

Forsceing a future m this “new fangled™
wdea, Roney, on NMarch 14, 1883, formed The
Allentown Electric Light and Power Company,
and became its first president and its active man-
ager.  LElsewhere in Central Eastern Pennsyl-
vania, other infant electric companies were being
formed.  In Hazleton! In Harnsburg! In Beth-
lchem!In Lancaster! On July 4, 1883, at Sunbury
the first commercial three-wire electric lighting
plant in the world was dedicated, a major 1m-
provement in the early method of power delivery.
Agan Thomas Edison had a hand . .

this company which, in addition to supplying

[N

organizing

street lighting, furnished interior lighting for what
1s now the Edison Hotel. This was the first such
service to a commercial establishment in the

United States.

[n those days, equipment was crude and

experimental, service limited, irregular and costly

.. . Twenty-five cents a kilowatt hour, the
average of that day.

But gradually service was improved, and this
new servant was adapted to a growing number of

PENNSYLVANIA POWER &

uses.  In the passing vears, it was discovered that
cach community did not need an individual power
plant; that berter, more abundant, more uniform
and lower-cost service could be supphed by join-
ing together and consolidating the facthties of
many small electriec companies, and replacing the
numerous tiny plants with a small number of
larger and more efficient  units. Consolidation
also pooled the engmeering abihty, operating
skill and financial backing necessary to progress

in this highly-specialized industry.

Typical, was the merger of the Allentown
Electne Light and Power orgamzation with sinnlar
locat companies.  This ulamately led to the
formation of The Lehigh Valley Light and Power

Company.

On June 4, 1920, merger of this company with
a number of other operating companies, largely
in the Allentown and Bethlehem area and the
southern anthracite fields, formed che Pennsyl-
vama Power & Light Company. Later the
companies operating i Sunbury, Williamsport,

Wilkes-Barre and
PP&L today serves Allentown along

Lancaster areas were also
merged.
with 777 other communities . . . more than half
a million homes, farms, stores, schools and factor-
tes in an area of 9500 square mules . . . spreading

through Central Eastern Pennsylvania.

Within the experience of many people still
living, electric service has developed from the
feeble glow of that first Edison light bulb to a
ready servant of every moment ‘round the clock.
Yet,
with all this progress, we are but on the threshold

Life, today, i1s inconceivable without it.

of a great new electrical age—a miraculous

pushbutton world of tomorrow.

LIGHT COMPANY
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Lehigh Valley Cooperative Farmers

AMERICA’S MOST

In the depths of the depression a group of farmers met to or-
cantze what is now known as onc of the most modern, ctheient
.md progressive dainies in America, the Lehigh Valley Coopera-
tve Farmers. Ther courage and resourcefulness defeated the
forces which threatened thar very hvelthood.
Orerartons Bromy Avouesy 15, 1934

Agamst what often seemed insuperable obstacles, this group

made slow but steady progress. Following an expenditure of
over $100,000 in remodeling and cquipping the tormer Post and
Sheldon bulding, 1026 North Seventh Streee, Allentown, lac
i 1933 and 1934, the operation of the plant began August 13th,
of the latter vear. Since that dare, growth of the dairy has
heen dramate vet always sound.  Thirty-four hundred pounds
of milk were processed on the opening day. Today, more than
cighty times that amount is received every day.
isirirrion Ar.

Since the opening of the Lehigh Valley Dairy, its distribution
arca has widened to include nor only: Allentown, Bethlehem
and Easton, but north 1o Tamaqua and the Pocoro Mountains:
west to Kueztown and south (o Philadelphia.

Ovir 2100 Mestnrxs

There has been a Large growth i the membership ot the

assoviation and a considerable inciease in the number of
members actually shipping milk into the plant. Today there
are over 2100 members as compared to 300 at the time opera-
tons bogan; and more than (00 of these members ship therr
mitk 1o the Lehigh Valley Dairy.

Reasons For Rarin Growin

What are the reasons for the growth of this depeession-born
venture?  Why, when buosinesses of all kinds were fathng
every day, should this dairy be so suceessiul from its beginming?

The answers are evident everywhere, from the bain behind
the colortul Lehigh Valley identification sign to the equally
colorful green and orange sanitary container that’s delivered
to storcs or direct to homes.

Every member shipping milk to the Lehigh Valley Dairy

has dectrical cooling cquipment or icing facilitics on his farm,
and every member must keep his herd, stables and utensils
ready for inspeccion at any moment.  The rigid, sclf-imposcd
requirements of the Lehigh Valley Dairy plant are adhered
to strictly, and when ailk fails to measure up, 't goes straight
back 1o the farm.
_ Redrigerated delivery trucks were another innovation first
introduced by this Dairy. “This, as all new uclmiqnvs and
equipment emploved, was the result of Lehigh Valley's con-
tinual sc arch for improved dairy products.

New Prant Covrrerep Decempir, 1948

In December 1948, the latest in a series of additions and
alterivions to the main plane was completed. The ever-
erowin: demand for Lehigh Valley Dairy products made the
addition imperative.  More office and storage space and great-
er proluction facnlltws were urgently needed.

Storace Faciiries

A livde known reason for the cconomical—to consumer and
suppl. r- -operation of the Dairy, is found in its huge storage
facilitics.  In the spring of the year, milk production increases

BEAUTIFUL

DAIRY

sharply. It there were no storage facilites, this surplus would
have to be sold at distress prices and user and dairvman would
suffer.  However, at the Lehigh Valley Dairy plane the excess
milk s immediacely separated. The cream is frozen, and the
skom mitk cither powdered or condensed. Hundreds of barrels
of powder and thousands of cans of cream are stored in refriger-
ated rooms 1o await hot weather. Then, when ice cream sales
curve sharply upward, the surplus is drawn upon, and buyer
and supplicr benefit again from the storage facilities.

Resronsisnary To Tue CoNsumeRr

Members of the Lehigh Valley Dairy have always recognized
that thair responsthility is basically and directly to the con-
sumer. o meet that responsthility fully, they have set for
themselves the highest standards of quality. These standards
are rigidly enforced and constantly checked.  The super-
vision of quality and purity extends in an unbroken chain
from cvery farm to every store and to the doorstep of every
consumer,

With this insistence upon top quality of product and facilities
has gone an awareness that the public has the right to buy
milk and mitk producrs ae a fair price. Whenever and where-
ever there has been an opportunity to effect a saving tocthe
huver, either i an improved product or a lowered price. Lehigh
Valley has done so without hesitation. Today, the Allentown
arca as the only area in Pennsvivania where Homogenized
Vitamin 1) Mitk is sold at no extra cost.  And the Lehigh
Valley Dairy as fichting 1o offect a similar saving in the other
arcas it serves,

Fair ReTurss To Tur Farsers

Along with its avowed policy of giving the consumer the
best at the lowest possible price, Lehigh Valley has proved
that ethaent operation can also give the farmer a fair price for
his milk.  With the obligations of high standards he assumes
as an owner-member, the dairyman gets the welcome privilege
of receiving more for his milk.  Through the intelligent pro-
motion of nulk by-products and an cnergetic selling program,
the Dairy has always found a market for its members’ products.
And it has always had milk and milk products forits customers’
needs.

Benerirs For Esmprovees

The more than 280 employees of the Lehigh Valley Dairy
are well-patd. The facilhities of the new buildings yovide
working condition: second to none in any industry in the City
of Allentown, and certainly far superior to any in the dairy
mdustry,

In January 1949, a Pension Plan was inaugu-ated covering
all employees.

Tue Furere

A new building program, to cost approximately $1,250,000,
will get under way in the near future. Greater production
facilities are urgently needed.

The Lchigh Valley Dairy has grown because of what it has
offered; high grade products at a rcasonable price to the user
and a reasonable payment to the farmer. Todav, Lchigh
Valley scts the pace and standards for the dairy industry in
this arca. And, guided by the sound prmnples of speration
in which it has pionecred, Lehigh Valley will continue to do so.
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ARBOGAST & BASTIAN, INC. WELCOMES YOU

As ONeE “Orp Home Townir” To ANOTHER

Founded sixty-three vears ago by two men whose names
it still bears, Arbogast & Bastian Inc. has grown up with
Allentown. It is proud of its origin, proud to be a citizen of
the old home town, and proud to be able to welcome you to
this celebration. ‘

The names of Arhogast & Bastian are well known here and
have been since this area was first settled. This is not
primarily because they are associated with A & B, but because
of the many fine families who bear them as proudly as A & B
does. We feel asif we are among friends and it’s a fine feeling.

Many of you have returned to Allentown for this celebra-
tion, after having left to establish your homes and families
elsewhere. Many others, perhaps the majority of you, never
went away. A & B has done both. Its physical plant has
remained in Allentown and has grown and prospered with
the community and its people. It has gone away through
the constant expansion of its market arca to the extent that
its products arc now available in almost every state cast of
the Mississippi River, and in many foreign countries.

A & B identifies itself with the old home town in many
other ways, but its greatest source of pride is that it has always
lived up to the “Pennsylvania Dutch” reputation for cleanli-
ness and fine food. People all over the country and in many
other parts of the civilized world associate those two character-
istics with this area and with good reason.

In line with the already established policy of cleanliness
and purity, A & B was the first meat packer in this arca to
place itself under the newly establisied Federal Tasp..ction

svstem in October, 1906, It has been constantly under that
system since that time and is at present the only packing plant
in the Lehigh Valley so covered.

The policy of producing fine foods is not ditheult 1o abude
by when the people who make them and the people for whom
they are made enjoy and deserve a world wide reputation for
good cating. They just couldn’t make anvihing clse.

As a member of the community A & B contributces greatly
to the support and encouragement of trs neighbor, local
agriculture by purchasing as many matcerials as possible
from local farmers. In the manufacture of scrapple alone
we use over one hundred thousand pounds of buckwheat,
corn mcal, wheat, and ryve flours annually.  All are purchased
locally. Other products of local agriculture purchased for
usc in the sausage and canning departments are ten thousand
pounds of fresh onions, one million two hundred thousand
pounds of potatoes and ten thousand dozens of epgs.

Since the great Livestock producing arcas of this country
are in the middle west and since our demands are so preat
it is possible for us to buy less than ten percent of our hogs
and less than forty percent of our cattle from local farmers.
We do, however, buy as much as is available. Furthermore,
we encourage the raising of more and better livestock by
attending all 4 H shows and bidding on many prize animuls.

Feeling as we do about our community, Old Home Week
has been a very pleasant experience for A & B. We trust
it has been so for you.

Don’t wait so long to come again.
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(Continued from Page 301)

Food processing  started  with  the  carly
bakers, who came into the citv with the first
settlers, and  Lawrence Hauck, the cev's first
slanghterer, who opened a “shop 1705 on
Lehigh Streer. The residents of the area took
therr ammals to Hauck, who killed and dressed
them and also sold mear. The next record of
commercial slaughtering is that of the steam
butcher shop of Otto Mever in 1868 who had
cool cellar for storage.  One imagimative writer
i an account of Mever's butcher shop sard that
cellar freczes in hive
minutes”. But not unul 1887, when
Wilson Arbogast and Morns Co Bastian formed
Arbogast and Bastian, that commercial slaughter-

g was done on a large scale i the ary. Today

he had “a where water

wWaus

food processing of various kinds 1s done i fifey-
three plants in the ary.

The Textile Industry

Following  conferences with  the  Board  of
Trade, predecessor to the Chamber of Commerce,
in 1880 the Phoemx Sitk Company was persuaded
to open a mill i this city. The suceess of its
Adelande mull at Race and Court Streets prompted
the opening of the Pioneer silk midl i 1886 and
the ciey was established as a silk manufacturing
center. At one time it was the largest silk pro-
duction center in the state. Reports show that
before World War T there were 20 silk mills here
and that the value of silk and textile products
amounted  to $9,838,000.  Wages represented
thirty-seven and one-half per cent of the city's
mdustrial payroll.

As a result of the growth of silk manufacturing,
the National Silk - Dyeing Company opened a
plant here in 1899,

There has been a transition in the silk industry
and many mills have turned their attention to
the production of synthetic fabrics but there
are large quantities of silks produced annually
i Allentown today.  In 1948, production in
textiles and  textile products was  valued at
$68,387,700 and wages amounted to $20,637,800.

Through the efforts of the Board of Trade
another new industry was brought to Allentown
in 1886 when the Barbour Mills opened the jute
plant at Jordan and Gordon Streets, site where
the Hessians captured at Trenton were quartered
duiing the Revolutionary War. The firm began

production of jute twine and Allentown has
since become one of the leading production
centers in the nation.

In 1886, the Towa Barb Wire Company was
induced by the Board of ‘Trade to move 1ts plant
here from Faston and located
Lehigh Street. The plant was acquired by the
American Steel and Wire Company and  later
became a umte of the UL S Steel Tt operated
until shortly before World War 11

Damel Carewright developed the first tele-
phone svstem in the community i 1880 and for
several vears operated  his service with one
emplovee who acted as operator, construction and
maintenance man.  The service opened  with
fifty customers.  Later a small company known
as the Lehigh Telephone Company was tformed
and served the community for many vears unul
it became a part of the Bell System.

The first auto buile in the ciey was a “one-
lunger” produced by Henry J. Nadig i 1839,
His shop was Later acquired by O. J. Marcks and
Sons.  In 1905 John and Charles Mack opened
the Mack truck plant, although they had been
making trucks for five vears before. The imdustry
was i its infancy at that ame and the company
has expanded steadilv untl it has become the
Largest individual emplover in the aty.

Older Industries

Among the other older enterprises in the city
are L. F. Grammes & Sons, founded in 1875;
the Allen Laundry, founded in 1885; F. Schwartz
& Son, men’s clothing manufacturers, founded
in 1888; the Trojan Powder Company, founded
in 1905.

These were the foundations on which Allen-
town's industrial activity was bult.

As one nationally known writer recently said,
“Cities just don’t happen, they’re planned,” and
the planners are the businessmen of the commun-
ity who work through their Chamber of Commerce
or their Board of Trade. As a result of this
planning, Allentown has Leen able to meet the
changing conditions in the industrial world,
adding new plants to the city’s constantly grow-
ing production list and providing employment
for the people of the commumty.

(Continued on Page 42)
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INDUSTRIAL ALLENTOWN

(Cuntinued from Page 41)

The development of the Allentown-Bethlehem-

Easton Airport 1s one of the finest examples of

community planmng.  In 1928 4 committee was
appomnted by the Chamber of Conunerce to select
a site for the development of an airpore. When
the site was deternined, a corporation was
formed to build and operate the airpore. When
necded improvements were necessary the Cham-
ber led in the development of the airport as a
jomt project of the city governments of Allentown
and Bethlehem and the commissioners of 1ehigh
County. Later, Easton othcials and the North-
ampton County  commssioners  joined in the
project.  Todayv 1t 1s one of the tinest airports
in the east.

The effectiveness of this planning can be
seen in other wavs from a stuldy of the reports
published 1 1914 and later dates. In 1914 1t
was said there were 11,481 industrial emplovees,
carning $5,061,000 and producing goods valued
at $26,263,327.

PR

[n 1939, total wages and salaries in the city
amounted to $20,915,600 and then there was a
steady climb to 858,106,800 in 1947, In 1948, the
latest vear forwhichothcial Deparementof Internal
Affairs figures arc available, imcome was 357,097,
700, The drop from 1947 to 1948 was occastoned
largely by a prolonged serike in @ major industry.
Figures of 1949 are expected to exceed 1948,

Since V-] Day, forty-one new plants have
been added to the ciey’s list of industnies.  In
1930 these firms are emploving a total of 5,089
workers and the annual income of the workers
will be $13,585,000.  Notable among the new
plants opened since V-] Dayv have been the
Western Electnie and General Flectiie plants.

Allentewn has always had an excellent supply
of skilled labor and the people of th community
have been able to adjust themselves readily to
new manufacturing processes.  In recent yvears
this natural apticude has been improved by the
development of voung men and women in the
vocational educational departments of our schools.




IN ALLENTOWN

@ I'he vear 1930 marks Mack’s Golden Anmiversary

A milestone in the history of automotive

transportation and a milestone in the istory of

the City of Allentown.

Mack first moved to Allentown in 1905, setting
up its factory in the vacant Hirsch-Weaver foundry.
The move to Allentown found the Mack Brothers
in atruly nation-wide business.  Durving the next
five vears deliveries of trucks and buses were made
to Seattde, Washington: Brooklvn, N.Y.: Rochester,
NY L Havana, Cubay New Orleans, La. and Phila-
delphia, Pa.

The vears that followed saw this tiny shop grow
mto a huge plant with more than a nnllion and a
half square feet of floor space, spread over 138 acres.
Here, today, o Mack's largest plant, are three
separate assembly lines plus faahtes for manutac-
turing frames, brakes, wheels, driveshafts and cabs.
From the Allentown plant come the famed Mack

trucks, buses and chassis for Mack fire apparatus.

For 45 years Macks have rolled out of Allentown
to every part of the globe.  Mack vehicles and Mack
men have served our nation in two world wars. And
in peacetime these trucks have made an even greater
contibution to the advancement of our standard
of living.

Mony thousands of Allentown catizens have
worked with Mack during these 45 vears. Today
more than 3000 men and women are employed in
the factories and offices of the Mack plant. Through-
out the world the city of Allentown has gained fame
as the home of the Mack truck. Here 1s a typical
example of a great industry and a great city growing

topether, prospering because of each other.
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1850

l 00 YEARS of Gas Service

in the ALLENTOWN-BETHLEHEM EASTON AREA

1950

’I‘Hl‘: history of the Allentown-Bethlehem Gas
Company dates back one hundred vears to
the vear 1850. In that vear Dr. Wilham F.
Danowsky of Allentown erected a small coal gas
plant in the vard of his home to manufacture gas
for his own use. He later laid a zine man atong
Hamilton Street to supply merchants and others.
For a while, gas was delivered to persons at a dis-
tance from the mains in rubber or leather bags
delivered by wagon. Tt was in this manner that
gas was introduced into the City of Bethlehem.
The price of gas at that time was $3.50 per thous-
and cubic feet.

The Easton Gas Company was also granted a
charter to supply gas to the City of Easton in
the year 1850,

Alter the introduction of gas into Bethlchem
in bags delivered in wagons a Company was organ-
ized 1 1853 called the Bethlehem Gas Company.
Other companies were organized on the South
and West sides and later merged to form the
Bethlehem Consolidated Gas Company.

A few years later gas was introduced into
Catasauqua with the organization of the Catasau-
qua Gas Company in 1856. ‘The streets of Cata-
sauqua were lighted by gas lights for the first
time that year.

The introduction of gas mto other parts of
our territory took place at a much later date.
The Emmaus Gas Company was formed in 1907
and the Highland Gas Company at Quakertown
in 1909.

On December 15, 1913, The Allentown Gas
Company, the Bethlechem Consclidated Gas
Company, Peoples Gas Company of Lehigh Coun-
ty and Consumers Gas Company of Northampton
County, successors to the Catasauqua Gas
Company, were merged into the Allentown-
Bethlehem Gas Company.

However, 1t was not unul 1945, duning the
Second World War, that the last hnk was forged
to form the gas system which now supphes our
great  Lehigh Valley NMetropolitan area. On
February 1 of that vear Allentown-Bethlehem
Gas Company acquired the gas properties of
Metropohitan Edison Company consisting of the
oryginal Faston Gas Works and the gas properties
at - Nazarcth, formerly the  Interurban Gas
Company, which they acquired i 1929

Records show that in 1901 Allentown Gas
Company produced 51,432 NLCF. of gas. Today
six times that much 1s produced m a single month,
In 1905 the Company had 30 miles of mains, 33
regular emplovees and oo annual pavroll of

$32,000.  The total revenue for that vear was
K117,000.
At the present tume  Allentown-Bethlchem

Gas Company, which 1s composed of fifty-five
predecessor companies, serves 67,000 customers
the Cities of Allentown, Bethlehem and Easton
and 43 Boroughs and Townships in the three
counties of Bucks, Lehigh and Northampton, and
also sells ot wholesale to City Gas Company of
Phillipsburg the entire gas supply for Philtipsburg
and Washington, N.]J.

Gas mains extend from the Delaware River
in Easton to a point about ten miles west of
Allentown in the direction of Reading, and from
Northampton south to Sellersville.  The popu-
lation of the arcaas about 300,000. The company
owns four gas manufacturing plants and a net-
work of 645 miles of mains.  During the past ten
vears the use of gas in the area has more than

doubled. Today the annual sales are almost
3,500,000,000 c¢.f.  Annual revenues are over
$4,000,000.  There are 420 employees and the

annual payroll is $1,200,000. The average price
of gas for the past 12 months was B1.00 per
thousand.

THE ALLENTOWNG-BETHLEHEM GAS COMPANY
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BUSINESS LEADERS: H. Len & Co. and Hess
Bros., left; Sears-Roksuck. the Cuamser of Cowm-
MERCE BLpG., ZoLLINGER-HARNED Co.. center; Duncan
AND FrY and the GErNerD BuiLping, right.




The Shopp

ing Center

Chamber of Commerce of Allentown

Since the carliest davs of the communmity
when the trappers and other residents north of
the ity came here to procure supplies and trade
pelts, Allentown has been a shopping center.

Bue for more than a year after the sestling
of Allentown, David Deshler, the city’s first
shopkeeper, had a monopoly on the retal trade.
It was not until 1764 that Peter Rhoads opened
his talor shop at 107-109 North Seventh Street
in a buillding now occupred by an auto accessories
store.  This is the only one of the business buld-
ings of that cra remaning 1 use in the city.

Streets had been Laid out by Justice Allen’s
survevors but no grades had been set and as a
result the two stores occupied places by the side
ol a very wide, crude road which was then known
as Allen Sereet. In the original plans for the
commumty, Allen street was to be the cty’s
chief business thoroughfare. It was a natural
hnk with the mountains to the south and the
communities to the north.

However, George Graff of Egypt, noticing the
farrly tevel ground on Hamilton Street westwardly
from Penn streer, determined to create a business
street of this thoroughtare.  He established a
store between Seventh and Eighth on Hamilton
Street in 1795 and thus set the pattern for the
development  of  Allentown’s  central  shopping
districe.

First Hamilton Street Store

Graff’s was the first store of major importance
m the community and remained the lone store
on Hamilton Street for several years. The new
stores  which opened 1mmediately afterward
located on Seventh Street or at the square.

The next shop to open was James Wilson's
store near the present site of Kuhns & Shank-
weiller.  Wilson’s son and a partner named
Selfiidge took over the ownership of the store
later and it became Selfridge and Wilson’s.
Selfridge was an Army officer and Indian fighter
and went westward when the city began growing
too rapidly.,

In 1795 we have the first accounts of night
life in the community. It centered around
Ruhe’s Rainbow Tavern at Seventh and Linden
Streets. Since the tavern was removed from the
center of population the sporting gentlemen of
the day could enjoy their grog and their foiends
unimelested by those who frewned on driinking.
At that ume Water Street, now Lehigh Street,
was the center of fashion.

Development of the shopping district was
slew and by 1811 there were only six stores 1n
the city. These included: Wilson’s, Deshler’s,
Graff's, Wilham Eckert's on South Seventh
Street, Peter Snvder’s where the Dime bank
balding is now located and Peter Rhoads’. In
the following vear Ruahe’s tobacconist shop was
opened on North Seventh Sereet between Hamilton
and Linden Streets.

The vear 1811 remains noteworthy sice the
establishment of Allentown as a borough was
followed immediately by passage of an ordinance
ordering grading and gener»! improvement of
the streets.  Roads into the city were also being
improved and business progressed with improved
travel conditions.

The seven stores did all of the business until
1815 when new stores were opened.  Foremost
of these were Sacgers’ general store opposite Zion
Reformed Church, by Jacob and Daniel Saeger;
Spangenberg & Gangewere, South Seventh Street;
Wagner & Dobbins, at the southwest corner of
Eighth and Hamilton Streets, and Ruhe and
Eckert’s, on North Seventh Street.

Saegers’ store, forerunner of the department
store, was purchased by Godfrey and Chnstian
Pretz and in 1830 they purchased a building at
the southeast corner of Sixth and Hamnlton Streets
where they were reported to have reached a peak
of $60,000 in sales in 1843. In 1859 the store was
sold to Hiram Guth & Company.

The Farmers’ Market

In 1817 a farmers’ market was located on the
Square and remained there until it was torn down
(Continued on Page 49)
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53 YEARS OF LOOKING AHEAD

. that's what Old Home Week means to Hess
Brothers. 33 vears of enthusiastically serving a
progressive, thriving commumty . . . knowing that
only the best and most modern merchandising was
good enough for the active, growing Lehigh Valley.

And Hess Brothers has grown WITH the Lehigh
Valley. Old Timers will remember the store’s
opening in 1897--a store space on only 50 x 125
feet with a staff of only 23 persons. By compari-
son, Hess Brothers now occupies almost half a
million square feet of floor space and is staffed by
nearly 1,000 Lehigh Valley people, many of w hom
have made careers of merchandising in the
modern manner.

+ Max and Charles Hess, who pioneered the mod-
ern departmentalized store in this area, were
considered vears ahead of their time—-even back
in 1897 when they opened the store. But their
faith in the growth of the area was well-founded—-
the Hess Brothers store has expanded steadily
since that date.

Hardly a year-—and seldom a month--has pass-
ed without a major expansion or improvement to
better serve our customers. To us-—-always look-
ing ahead—it seems like history but it was really

‘Wt ¥ Amias AN A

news when Hess's first opened 6 complete floors
devoted to merchandise,

Allentown’s first Escalators were seen in Hess
Brothers: - saving time and effort for our custom-
ers. Best of all, they serve all floors.

Air-Conditioming - another “First” at Hess's
adding greatly to the convenience and comfort
of the pubhec.

These are oaly three of the hundreds of major
improvements which have helped make Hess
Brothers truly “One of America’s Better Stores”
—known to manufacturers and resources the
country-over as a leading retailer.

What does all this add up to?

To you, our customers, it means just this .
with your patronage over the years, Hess Bmth( rs
services to you have expanded--always a larger,
finer store in which to shop. As Hess Brothers
expands in importance in American recailing—the
newest merchandise, the finest things and the
benefits of the lowest prices.

And so, the passage of 53 vears finds us still
“Looking Ahead”-- as Max and Charles Hess did
back in 1897. We're very proud of our history
but working towards—-and eager for—the futuse.

HESS BROTHERS -

1)




THE

SHOPPING CENTER

(Continued from Page 47)

during  the  fire  on  Ascension Day, 1848,
A new market was opened at Church and Linden
Streets eleven vears later and continued in oper-
ation untl 1897 when 1t was razed for the erection
of our City Hall, '

John Haimes opened a store ac Fighth and
Hamileon Streets in 1820 and confined his business
to trading with che farmers, taking their farm
products i exchange  for merchandise.  Hay
scales were placed on the Square in 1832 and re-
maimed 1 use up to the time the Hotel Allen was
started.

Just as the residents of commumties north
of Allentown had to rely on local shops for their
supphes during the early days of Allentown, the
merchants had to rely upon foreign manufac-
turers for their merchandise duning the same
peniod. Amencan manufacturers were not produc-
ing in suthcient quantity to supply the stores
and we find a record in the late Charles Roberts’
history of Lehigh County of the fact that in 1838
there were twenty-three stores in the city selling
“foreign merchandise.”  Merchandise from  all
over the world can stull be purchased in the
stores, but Amencan made products now com-
prisc the bulk of stocks.  The carly settlers of
Allentown  bought  1mported  merchandise  be-
cause there was no other adequate supply.

Close study of the history of the shopping
distnice reveals the sharp changes which occurred
in store ownership.  No explanations are offered.
No doubt some found merchandising was 2
hazardous business while other shops were dis-
centimued when the owners died or moved on
to other communities.  In 1832 there were 24
stores histed in the city and of these only fourteen
were 1 husiness 1838,

M. S. Young Cldest Store

The oldest of our present day stores was open-
ed in 1843, shortly after Peter Newhard opened
a similar store oif Hamilton Street.  In that
vear Stephen Barber and Joseph Young opened
their hardware store. It was later acquired by
Mark ' S. Young and has continued in operation
by members of the family since that time, grow-
ing to become one of the cast’s largest whole-
sale-retail hardware outlets,

In 1847 Henry Schnureman opened a men’s
clothing store on Hamilton street. The store has

remained continually in business since that nme
but passed through six  different ownerships
before beng acquired by Bohlen, Gross ard
Mover.

A vear later, June 1, 1848, was the disastrous
Ascension Day fire.  Business houses i the ciey
remained closed on Ascension Dav for many
vears thereafter. The fire broke out n a stable
in the rear of a shop on North Seventh Street.
There was a high wind and the flames spread
rapidly, destroving or damaging ncarly half the
city.

Henry Leh founded H. Leh & Company in
1850 as a manutacturer of men’s and boys’ shoes.
The company sold shoes at retail. Tt was not
until 1877 that the two branches of the business
were separated.  The manufacture of shoes was
discontinued when the present store was built.

Two of the city’s oldest wholesale houses
were founded in 1856 and 1857, E. W. Trexler
founded the Trexler Lumber Company in 1856
and Bitener-Hunsicker was established the follow-
ing vear,

Forty stores were doing business in the aty
in 1860, imcluding W. H. Appel’s jewelry store
which has continued in the same location and
under the same fanmuly control for the past
ninety vears. In 1862, Jacob L. Farr, Sr., found-
ed Farr's Shoe Stores and this, too, has remained
under the control of the family since that ume.
Keller's Jewelry Store was founded in 1865 by
Edwin and S. S. Keller.

Pioneer Business

As a result of the many changes in ownership
of various retail and wholesale concerns there
are very few operating today which were in busi-
ness prior to the turn of the century. There are
only 14 stores in Pennsylvania more than 100
vears old.  However, after the incorporation of
Allentown as a city in 1867 there were a number
of business establishments founded which are
continuing under the firm name. Among this
group of retailers and wholesalers are such firms
as the C. A. Dorney Furniture Company, founded
in 1872; Koch Brothers, which was orngmally
Koch and Shankweiler, founded in 1876;

(Continued on Page 50)
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(Continued from Page 49)

Ebbecke's, 1881; W. H. Tavlor & Company
and C. Y. Schelly and Brother, 1883 Kramer’s
Music Flouse. founded i 1887; Dungan and
Fry, founded in 1893: Shankweiler and lLchr,
now Kuhns & Shankweiler, founded mn 1890; and
Hess Brothers, founded by Max and Charles
Hess in 1897.

The C. A. Dorney Furniture Company is the
outgrowth of the Dornev and Berkemeyer turni-
ture factory which was founded 10 1872, C. A.
Dorney acquired the business when the separation
of the retaml and manufacturing branches was
made in 1877 and 1n 1898 the firm was purchased
by Charles Ziegenfus whose family continues the
operation.

Koch Brothers had its onigin when Frank W.
Koch and Wilson Shankweiler founded a men’s
clothing store in 1876. Wilson Shankweiler died
in 1890, four vears after the firm had moved to
the present location, and Mr. Koch acquired sole
ownership ot the firm. Later he was jomed by
his brother, Thomas ]. Koch, and the firm be-
came Koch Brothers. Lewis Shankweiler, who
had been with the onginal store of Koch and
Shankweiller, and Willham C. l.ehr formed a
partnership of Shankweiler and Lehr in 1890
and located next door to Koch Brothers. The
new men’s store moved across the street to the
southwest corner of Seventh and Hamnlton Streets
and later the members of the Kuhns family ac-
quired the Lehr interests, forming the new firn
of Kuhns and Shankweiler.

Elmer E. Dungan and Joseph P. Fry origin-
ally had their furniture store on North Seventh
Street where 1t remained for many vears before
the present location was purchased.

Hess Brothers, Max and Charles Hess, opened
their little shop at the old Black Bear Hotel and
in the course of the fifty-three years of operation
it has become one of the leading department
stores in the State.

Zollinger and Harned’s history dates back
to 1866 when a store was opened by Wilham R.
Lawfer and W. R. Steckel. The store was later
purchased by Mr. Lawfer and passed through
periods when i1t was operated as Lawfer and
Harned, and Lawfer and Early before it was
acquired by the present ownership. Schelly’s
has always been located on North Seventh
Street and has become animportant factor in the

distribution of hardware products.  W. H. Taylor
and Company has constantly been expanding its
business, mstallation of industrial machinery.

First of the vanety stores opened in the aty
was F. W.o Woolworth’s which made 1ts first
report of sales to the home office in December,
1889.  The store was located at 643 Hamilton
Streetonginally, moved to the site of the present
Lerner Store and recently erected its new building
in the 700 block on Hamilton Street.

O. Il Dietrich, founder of the Dietnich
Motor Company, was a bicvele dealer in the
city in 1900 when be became interested in auto
sales.  Dietrich Motor Company 1s the oldest
in the point of continuous operation in the city.

Wetherhold & Metzger’s was not established
until 1908 when George Wetherhold and Owen
W. Metzger formed a partnership and opened
their shop at 714 Hamilton Street.  Guth's
luggage shop was formerly Wardman’s. It was
purchased at the turn of the century by George
1. Guth who was later joined by his brother
Harry who has continued the business.

It was these firms which formed the backbone
for the development of Allentown as one of the
most  pregressive  commercial  centers i the
nation. Even during the days when Hamilton
Street was knownr for its wooden awnings, its
hitching posts, its whistling peanut roasters and its
midtown utility poles, citizens were bulding
solidly for Allentown’s business future.

There were many stores which entered the
scene, thrived for a short time or failed and then
disappeared, but all of them helped to make the
city a good wholesale and retail center.  In the
final analysis 1t was those firms which weathered
the storms of cconomic cycles which laid the
foundation for the commercial life of the city as we
know 1t today.

City Is Accessible

While grades had been set for the streets in
1811 it was not until early in 1900 that streers
were paved. In that year Hamilton Street from
Penn to Eighth was given an asphalt covercd
surface and since that time street-paving has
kept pace with the growth of the city.

(Continued on Page 0)
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In 1850, a number of leading farmers and enterprising citizens became interested
in the project of forming an agricultural socicty, which was to have for its aim
“the improvement and advancement of agriculture, horticulture, livestock and

domestic and mechanic arts.”
A series of meetings were held during the vears of 1850 and 1851 at the Eagle
Hotel, Allentown: at Ruchswville, Bremmgsville, and Millerstown.  The first one,
however, at which definite action was taken, convenied at the public house of
William Leisenring in Egyvpt, Whitehall township, on January 24th, 1852, There
it was resolved to organize an agncultural society for Lehigh County and a com-
mittee was appointed to prepare a constitution.  The constitution was adopted
on February 3, 1852,

Preparations were immediately begun for the holding of the first Lehigh County
agnicultural fair.  Allentown, being at that time already a flourishing town and
also the county seat, was selected as the most convenient place for this purpose.
The first fair was held on October 6, 7 and 8, 1832, on a five-acre plot of ground
located East of Fourth Street, between Walnut and Umon Streets. Tt as recorded
that this fair was so successful that the managers at once felt warranted in taking

steps to make this feature of the society a permanent institution.

The second fair was held September 28, 29 and 30, 1853, 0ona tract of land North
of Liberty Street, between Fifth and Sixth Streets, which was leased for this pur-

pose, and later purchased by the society.

In 1889 the present site was purchased and many of the structures on the old
grounds were transferred to the new fairgrounds, and new buildings were erected.

The year of 1901 marked the semi-centennial celebration, half a century of steady
progress of the Society. A half-mile track of oval shape was laid out.  In 1910 a

new steel grandstand was erected.

From time to time improvements have been made and everything is now being done

to begin modernization of the grounds

Do Nor Fai. To Vaste o0 o 0 -

THE GREAT ALLENTOWN FAIR
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1903

MAIN OFFICE
7T AND HAMILTON ST8,

1950)

BRANCH
TILGHMAN 5T, a1 RIDGE AVE,

NATIONAL BANK

The Merchants Bank of Allentown opened
for busines on the hrst floor of the present
Y.M.C.A. building on March 30, 1903, s first
officers were: President, Fred E. Lewis; vice-
president, Thomas J. Koch; cashier, Charles O.
Schantz.

In 1916 the bank purchased the A. M. Springer
store property at the southwest corner of Seventh
and Hamilton Streers and crected a modern bank
structure which was occupied in September, 1921.

OFFICERS

President. Lovts Po Neowrnew: Vice-Presidents, Onver No Crauss,
Herpert B, Waoxer ano Hexgy 1. Kocus Cachier, SO Cara Bear;
Trust Officer, Jous R. Hewwi: dssistant Cachicr and Branch Manager,
H. Srewary Koons; Auditer. M. W, S8yper; Assistant Cashier Grorar
A, WikoNer; Assistant Cashier, R H. Casiurise; Assistant Branch
Manager, Kenngrn CSpeNGLER; Soltcitor, Areus FLoSuavvers Assistant
Cashirr, Rav D. Muvier; dssictant Cachier. Jases Lo McGinpey.

Stilt Later, the Chromicle & News huailding at che
rear of the bank was acquired and added for the
Merchants Bank - use.

To cater to the needs of growing Allentown,
the bank recently erected a modern branch
building on the northeast corner of Ridge Avenue
and  Tighman streets, which was opened for
business on December 19, 1949, as ws Tilghman
street Branch,

DIRECTORS

Presron M. Bastiaw
Pave F. BrriNer
Oriver N, Cratss
1 Onver Doggys
Growgy M. Hewse

Tosren AL Lipprrans
Owen W, Merzore
Davin AL Minien
Lovis I Nevv kg
Dhros F. Scuwariz
Grokce . KNpre Manrgis Senperowiil
Hesey T, Kocen Arces FooSarvex
Hirserr B, WaoNex
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THE SHOPPING CENTER

(Continued from Page 50)

As roads throughout the suburbs improved,
trafhe to Allentown’s stores and wholesale houses
increased.  During the past ewenty vears through
their efforts in their organization, the Chamber
of Commerce, the retailers have greatly expanded
ther trade area and today shipments of merchan-
dise within a radius of thirey-five miles are sched-
uled regularly.

Irom the davs of David Deshler and his licele
shop on South Seventh Street the city's retal
volume has grown to J141,000,000 according
to the 1948 census report. '

One of the major factors in the city’s retail
and wholesale growth was the transformation
of 1ts appearance, started in 1918, Mavor A.
I.. Reichenbach by persistent effort and  encour-

aged by the more progressive busiessmen of

the community  completely  changed the look
on Hamilton Street and other streets in the
central business district by having all light poles,
all wooden awnings and unsightly signs removed.

Since then Allentown’s business district has
been undergoing constant change.  Duning the
davs of the depression more than $2,000,000
were spent i face hfung the city’s central shop-

mithons were spent

ping distnict. Additonal
in the past decade, and plans call for further

beautification and modermzation,

Banking In Allentown

The first bank i the aity was founded in IS4,
The Northampron Bank, as it was called, was lo-
cated on the present site of the Allentcwn National
Bank.  The Northampton Bank continued to
prosper until 1842 when a series of loans placed
the bank v dithculev. Tt was closed on July
15, 1843.

Twelve vears later the Allentown Natwonal
Bank was organized and opened at the present
location. Tt was one of the first subscribers to
the local telephone service msttuted by Damel
Cortwrnight. The success of thisinstitution prompt-
ed the opening of the Second National Bank
in 1863, The Lehigh Vallev Trust Compaey m
1886, T™e Merchants Natonal Bank in 1903,
and the Liberty Bank and Trust Company m
1919. The banks at the begimming of the vear
had resources of $122,000,000 and  deposits of
nearly $110,000,0000,

LEHIGH & NEW ENGLAND RAILROAD TERMINAL



1908 - 1918 - 1980

THROUGH THE YEARS WITH - - -
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- — one of America’s
finest Shoes Stores
in one of
America’s Finest

Cities !

Opened April 11, 108 at 714 Hamilton Street

SOME OF THE CHAPTERS IN THE
WETHERHOLD & METZGER
42-YEAR “SUCCESS STORY™

O Wetherhald & Metager «  Openinz Heading Base-
1908 Fouuded at 714 Hamnl- 1 934 ment Store.
ton Street.
. . Opening of the Xhoe
1912 First correetive  com- 1944 '1(&,&;,*’1;‘3(,‘“}« at 2]
=" furt shoe department N. Hall Street.
founded in Allentown,

) i K
l()-}?( pening of the Arch

Openi 4 A
19]3 pening of basement Shoe Saton

store, ehildree’s shoe
:!vmrtuwnlt A tiu»u- en [ e N
ty. Iy HY g Opening of the New
;:;r ali'(“l[t:lt!.l:ﬁ-n:m " 1950 l}ﬂ'mﬁn Shoe Store
at 95335 Hambiton 8t
Q1o Upening of the new
l)l‘\ \\‘thr wold & Metager

shoe  store mnd“nﬂiw

bullding at 719 Hamal-

ton Blreet

A LARGER AND NEWER WETHERHOLD & Mutzaer StoRe

Opened April 11, 1918 at 719 Hamilton Street (prescnt location)

1922 Opening of the Arch

“« Preserver Shoe Siore
at #H6 Penn Street,
Reading, Va.

1933 Opening of the new

7 Wetherhold & Metager
Shoe Store at 612 Penn
St, Reading, Pa

A s p

WELCOME TO
OLD HHOME WEEK!

g =10

Opened March 25, 1050 at 953-55 Hamilton Street

ALLENTOWN . . . . L at WETHERHOLD & METZGER READING « « . . . at

719 Hamilton Street and
9535 llamilton Streets The Store of Famous Shoes 642 Penn Sercer

i
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Transportation

Allentorwn Chamber of Commerce

As the city grew beyond the 42 square blocks
ongimally laid out by Justice Allen’s surveyors,
the distance between home and work and home
and shop increased and the need for local pubhic

transportation became evident.

For many vyears the horse or horse drawn
vehicles furmished the only means of transpor-
tation. It was slow and unsatisfactory and ford-
ing the streams for journeys to the cast was
dangerous.

The first attempt to overcome some of the
natural handicaps 1n local transportation was
made i 1788 when a proposal to construct a
bridge across the Jordan on Hamilton Street
was recommended to the city fathers. There
was such violent protest against the idea that it
was abandoned and the city fathers compromised
by pernutting the erecuon of a bridge across the
creeck at Umon Street. It was not unul 1837
that a stone bridge was built across the Jordan

on Hamilton Street.

Two companies were granted charters for the
ercction of a bridge across the Lehigh rniver
within fixed tme limits and failed. In 1812 a
third company was chartered and erected a chain
suspension bridge which i:mained in use unul 1t
was destroyed by the flood in 1862. A temporary
structure was used untl 1867 when an iron span

was placed over the river.

On May 21, 1868, a horse-car line was placed
in operation in the city after having been char-
tered under the Street Railway Act of 1865.
The line operated from the Black Bear Hotel,
where Hess Brothers 1s now located, to the
Lehigh Valley Depot. The line had permission
to extend its services to the Allentown Iron Works

and also Catasauqua.

The Bethlechem-Allentown  Street  Railway
was organized in 1889 and operated between the
two communities.  The company was succeeded

by the Allentown-Bethlehem  Rapid  Transit
company which erected an electric powerhouse
i the First Ward in 1891, The company procured
999 vear leases on other hines in the area and the
group of compames was merged to form the
Lehigh Valley Traction Company which devel-

oped our present public transportation system.

Mecanwhile ro- Is to various neighboring com-
the

Kutztown trolley system was organized in 1895,

mumties ha” been built and Allentown-
In 1902 this became part of the Allentown-
Reading ‘Traction Company and continued in
operation until a few years ago, being superseded

by the present bus route.

With the development of the auto industry,
the use of buses in local transportation was intro-
duced and gradually increased and with the
expansion of the excellent paved highways came
another developmment in transportation—the use
of motorized freight lines. Buses are todav
supplanting the trolley lines and the motor
freight lines are serious competitors of railroads
for certain types of cargo. Today more than 300
large trucks play an important part in hauling
merchandise or matenals in and out of the city
daily.

The first paved streets in the city were not
constructed until after the beginning of the
present century but in the past fifty years great
changes have been made in road construction.
Asphalt and block paving has been giving way to
greatly improved reinforced concrete roadways.

These developments have made important
contributions to the expansion of the city as an
industnal, retail and wholesale center.
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LEHIGH VALLEY TRANSIT COMPANY

and 1ts predecessor compantes have been identified with progress in getting people
to their destinations in comfort and safety for over eighty years. Lehigh Valley
Transit Company was incorporated in 1905 but the transportation system in the
Lehigh Valley 1s for the most part the successor to the early horse car lines.

1865 - -First horse car hine in the Ciey of Allentown chartered.

1891 - City horse car lines electnified.

1892 ~-Lines extended to Bethlehem and Catasauqua.

1900 -Line extended from Allentown to Chestnut Tl

1912 Liberty Bell trolley line commenced operation.

1925 -Lehigh Valley Transportation Company, bus operating subsidiary, incorpor-
ated.

1950 -Lehgh Valley Transit Company system operates 100 miles of trolley and
254 miles of bus routes serving 56 communmties in Lehigh, Bucks, North-
ampton and Montgomery Counties with an approximate population of
350,000, It operates 104 trolley ~ars and 137 buses and carries approxim-
ately 50,000,000 passengers annually. The Company has over 700 employecs.

FEINBERG & SONS

Garment Manufacturers

w oW W

IN BUSINESS IN ALLENTOWN FOR FORTY YEARS
HAVE ALWAYS EMPLOYED LOCAL  LABOR
HAVE CONTRIBUTED TO ALLENTOWN’S GROWTH




THE OLD AND THE NEW: Above, TroLLeys IN Yarp AT Fatrview Car Barn, and below,
MobperN Buses WHich ARE Rarivey Rerracing TroLLEYs
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¢ Schools

CHARrRLES H. NEHF

Visual Education Director
Allentorwon School District

The Allentown Public school system, thirty-
nine vears older than the incorporated status of
the City itself, has enjoved a growing reputation
in its now 132 years of continuous existence.
Steeped in the American pattern of community
life, the district has advanced unal 14,222 boys
and girls were enrolled in its 26 schools during
the 1949-50 term.

Initiated 1n 1828, the historic records of the
area indicate that the borough of Northampton
(Adentown) and the townships of Salisbury and
Northampton paid $421.71 for the education of
their children.  In 1833 the borough alone paid
$434.77.

Provisions for the first public education pro-
gram in Allentown were founded vn a Common-
wealth Act of 1824, Under its terms the children
of those unable to pay for private instruction
were to be provided education at the expense
of the county.

Boys and girls from families in the lower in-
come brackets were permitted to attend any
one of the approved private schools in the borough.
Tuition expenses, according to the first act, were
underwritten by the county officials.

Famous Act of 1834

Championed by the great American education
leader Thaddeus Stevens, the State legislature
passed the Model Public School Act of 1834. School
districts, upon the approval of the local elector-
ate, could be established for the eduaction of all
boys and girls, regardless of their race, color, or
creed.

The ink on the bill had hardly dried when
residents of Northampton borough began their
campaign to establish a functioning local school
district.  Opinion mounted and during an an-
nounced meeting of the citizenry held on Septem-
ber 12, 1834, in the public house of George
Wetherhold, an influential group assembled un-
animously passed the following resolution:

“Whereas, We believe that educa-
tion contributes to the happiness of man
and the welfare of society, and we de-

sire, so far as in our power, to improve
the moral conditions of the community,
and to perpetuate free institutions, there-
fore,

“Resolved, That we solemnly believe
that an act passed at the late session of
the legislature entitled ‘an act’, etc., if
put in force will be of advantage to the
poor as well as the rich, and we will
therefore apply all honorable means at
the next election to secure the success of
the system.”

Efforts of the friends of the new law were
so successfiil that it was adopted in the election
of the same year by a vote of 137 to one. Mem-
bers of the first school board were: Jacob
Mohr, J. S. Gibbons Esq., George Haberacker,
William  Fry, Alexander Taylor, and George
Keiper.

The Mingo School

In the transition period immediately follow-
ing the local approval of the public school act,
all boys and girls continued to attend the private-
iy run schools. Tuitions averaging from $10 to
$20 per term, depending upon the number of
subjects the student carried, were underwritten
by the distrct.

Ground work for the first public school
building was begun on August 30, 1837, when a
teact of land was purchased by the “school district
of the common school system” of Northampton
township, Lehigh County, from Walter C. and
Mary L. Livingston. A sum of $50 was pad
for the area in the triangular plot at the junction
of Walnut and Union streets, near Front street.

Upon this land the Mingo school, Allentown’s
first public school building, was constructed.
The substantial brick building, 20 x 40 feet,
housed the pupils tfrom the lower end of the
comnmunity.

The first “female teacher’” was hired by the
district in 1838 and by 1841, three of the six

(Continued on Page 64)
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THE PUBLIC SCHQOLS

(Continued from Page 63)

teachers in the local schools were women. As
the population of the borough advanced, records
indicate that there were ten teachers in the system
by 1849.

In 1858, the first school house built by a
“board of directors” waserected on Turner Street,
west of Eighth. Prior to that time the thirteen
graded schools were kept in buildings erected
for other purposes, but purchased by the board
and converted into school houses.

Allentown High School

Allentown High School found its huimnble
beginning in 1858, when R. W. McApline took
charge of a group of 14 secondary students in
the Garber-Horne building, formerly the home
of the North American Homeopathic School of
Healing Arts.

The following year, by a vote of six to two, a
separate high school was established for each
sex. Augustus Armagnac was named teacher
for the male students and Mrs. Hannah L.
Romig of the female high school.

From 1859 to 1894 classes were held separately
for the boys and girls. Notes from the AHS
diary show that early classes for the boys were
held in the old Leh Store building and girls’
sessions conducted in the Sunday School rooms
of the First Presbyterian Church, North Fifth St.

The first high school commencement was held
in 1869 in the Presbyterian Church, and the first
diplomas were awarded to the class of 1874. The
Anniversary History of Lehigh county adds that
the classes graduating from 1869 to 1874 subse-
quently received diplomas also. High school
classes were housed in the Wolf building from
1880 to 1894, and for the next 22 years in the
“Old Central” at Lumber and Turner Streets.

The main building of the high school at
Seventeenth and Turner Streets, was established
in 1916. In 1930 the Annex, the Little Palestra,
and the “tunnel” were added. Within the past
decade the Nineteenth Street machine shop,
Hunsicker electrical shop annex, Mack and Farr
buildings, new stadium, and the vocational annex
have been added.

Clifford S. J. Bartholomew is principal of the
school which has an average enrollment of 3,000
students, A professional staff of 126 constitutes
its administrative and instructional personnel.

Nine Superintendents

Since 1868 when R. K. Buehrle was appointed
first superintendent of the Allentown schools,
the system has had nine educators in the top
position. Buehrle who served from 1868 to 1878
was a teacher in the boys high school prior to
his promotion.

George W. Desh served the interim tfrom 1878
to 1881. For the next 12 years and untl his
retirement, Prof. L. B. Landis held the office of
third superintendent.  During his extensive
teaching experience he taught in Allentown
schools from 1871 to 1875. He was principal
of Hokendauqua schools before he was named
local superintendent in 1881.

Francais D. Raub, associated with the Allen-
town schools for 40 years, was superintendent
during the period of 1893-1916.  Dental care
and health examinations were inaugurated during
his 23 year term of ofhce.

Dr. Hiram W. Dodd followed for the next
20 vears, serving from 1916 to 1936. Along with
his assistant Charles F. Seidel, the extensive
junior high school system was begun in September,
1927, by Superintendent Dodd.  William L.
Connor, the sixth superintendent, honored the
position from 1936-1942,

Dr. Fred W. Hosler’s term of 1942-48 saw
the erection of the Midway Manor and Lehigh
Parkway elementary units, AHS vocational annex,
and the million dollar scadium; along with the
purchase of the Mack and Farr properties and
the Nineteenth Street shop.

Dr. Charles F. Seidel, who had served under
four superintendents, was elected the cighth
head of the local system in 1948, Upon his retive-
ment on July 1, 1950, the position was taken
over by the incumbent, John S. Cartwright.

At the present time the Allentown School
District owns 39 buildings, 34 of which are used
for school purposes. Its total capital assets have
a value of $9,083,878.91. Broken down this
represents $7,521,645.16, buildings; $736,246.54,
land; and $825,987.21, equipment.

The stewardship of its 560 administrators and
teachers is exemplified by the thousands of boys
and girls tiained into effective leadership for
the Allentown of the future.



THE J. B. URN SCIVER (0. - ALLENTOWN, PA.

The sceds of this great furmiture and house
furmshings business, the J. B. Van Sciver Co.,
were sown by Joseph B. Van Sciver in 1880 in a
hetle twenty-foot wide store at 210 Federal

Street, Camden, New  Jersey.

Within a few vears, the volume of business
had outgrown its first location and a much larger
building was erected for that purpose at Delaware
Avenue and Federal Street, Camden.  This was
a most advantageous location and the history of
the company from that time was one of rapid
development and phenomenal growth under the

carcful and active influence of its founder.

In 1896 another building of seven stories was
added while more were buile in 1902 to keep pace

with the ever increasing volume of business and

in 1923 a seven-story structure was added to the
plant, which today occupies a city block.

In 1937 a store was opened in Allentown, Pa.
which proved to be one of the most successful of
the conpany’s five branches.  Located at 10th
and Hanulton Streets it has extended Allentown’s
shopping  district weseward and 1c’s tower and
sign-occupy a pronnent place in Allentown’s
pent

skvline. Tt contains three floors and a

house for the exhibit of home furmshings.

The Allentown Store Manager, Mr. W. Howard
McLuckie entered the company’s employ in 1924
as an othce boy and was Assistant Manager of
the Contract Department at the time of his
In 1948 Mr.
McLuckie was clected to the Board of Directors

of the J. B. Van Sciver Co.

selection as store manager in 1937,



BETZ’S

RESTAURANT AND BAR

726 HAMILTON STREET ALLENTOWN, PA.

(ODur Slogan)
Tue Home orF Pesnsyrvania Duren Cookinve

One of the oldest Cafcs and Restaurants in the Lehigh Valley,  Acquired the
name of BETZ through the ownership of the Betz familyv.” Now trading for 25
vears as the Betz Restaurant.

This 1s the onginal home of Straub and Merkle in March 6th, 1916, During the
“Gay Nineties” this was one of the most popular Cafe and cating establishments
in the City of Allentown. During the above period the seating capacity was 35-
at the present ume the establishment seats 320, with a staff of 70 employees.
Equipped with the finest stainless steel kitchen with 12 first class cooks, including
a modern bar,

Entire Building Is Air Conditioned

Phone 4-5406 STEevE Perrisky, Present Owner




ALLENTOWN'S BREWING INDUSTRY: _.dbore, L. F. NevweiLer's SoNs BREWERY;
Rottom, Hortacuer BrewinG CoMpany
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Catholic Education

by

Rev. Henry ], Huesman
Principal, Gentral Catholic High School

Over 3,200 children were enrolled 1in eleven
Parochial  elementary  schools, and 1,100 in
Allentown Central Catholic High School for the
school term 1949-50.  Begun nearly 92 vears ago,
the educational program of the Catholic Church
in the City of Allentown and Lehigh County has
held a distinct place 1 the schooling of thousands
of residents of the community,

The six Catholic elementary and the one
Catholic high school in Allentown have an enroll-
ment of close to 3,400 students. Throughout
Lehigh County five additional schools have an
enrollment of 834, or a grand total of more than
4,300 bovs and girls receiving their formal educa-
tion under the gutdance and support of the Cath-
olic Church. All eleven elementary schools are
State accredited, as is Central Cathohe High
School, which in 1943 received a superior rating
by the Middle Atlantuce and Marviand Accredit-
ing Association. Many students who were the prod-
uct of the Parochial school svstem have gone on
to receive honors from colleges and unmiversities
throughout the country.

These statistics reveal a great development
from the first panish school for Catholic children,
opened October 6, 1858, by Rev. Charles Schrader,
sccond rector of the Church of the Tmmaculate
Conception. The first teacher was Jonas Adam,
former organist at the Jesuit Missionary Church
at. Bally.  Thirty  children attended the first
session, held in the home Peter Kobhler, acar
the Church.  Successors of Jonas  Adam  were
lay teachers from the local area.

Sacred Heart School First

On October 20, 1870, the panish school of the
Church of the Sacred Heart, on North Fourth
Street, was opened in the basement of the Charch.,
The sisters of St. Francais of Glen Riddle, Pa.,
were placed in charge of the school. The Rev.
Ernest O, Hilterman was responsible for this
beginning.  Then in 1905, a large and modern
school, planned to accommodate 1,000 pupils,
which now stands on North Fourth Street, was
the result of efforts of Rev. Joseph Neri and his
parshioners.  Actually, this was the first Catholic

school buillding in Lehigh County. The Sacred
Heart School continued to grow steadily its ex-
pansion being curtailed only when new parishes
opened and the children transferred to other
schools.  The Sacred Heart parish, of which
the Re. Rev. Monsignor Leo Gregory Fink s
now pastor, also founded Allentown Central
Catholic High School, in 1928,

Under the direction of Rev. John J. Walsh,
beloved rector and educator, the Parochial
School of the Church of the Immaculate Concep-
tion was opened on September 30, 1907.  In
1923, the first Catholic high school was opened
by the Rev. Edward J. Murphy, under whose
gwidance the acuvities of the parish grew. The
Sisters of St. Joseph of Chestnut Hill, Pa., were
the first teachers in the elementary school, and
later accepted teaching assignment in the high
school.  The pastor today is the Rev. Joseph A.
McGomgle.

Under the direction of the Rev. George M.
Petro, D. D, rector of St. John the
Bapust pansh, a pracucal and large school was
built in 1924, located at Front and Bridge Streets.
The Missionary Sisters of the Sacred Heart, from
Bernharts, Pa., are in charge of the school.

now

In 1927, duning the pastorate of the Rev.
John  C. Phelan, an attractive  combination
Church and school building was constructed at
Fighteenth and Turner Streets. Thus began the
cducational program of St. Catherine of Siena
Panish.  The Sisters of St. Joseph, Chestnut Hill,
were appointed teachers in this school, which has
recently been modermized under guidance of the
present pastor, Rev. Hugh F. McMullan.

In East Allentown, in 1928, the Rev. Joseph
L. Mathis, founder and present pastor of Our
Lady Help of Christians parish, located i the
XN block on Hanover Avenue, intiated the erec-
tion of a beautiful combination Church and school
building. The Sisters of Christian Charity, from
Mendham, New Jersey, were placed in charge
of the school.

In 1931, the Rev. Francis W. Walters, founder
and present pastor of St. Francis parish, located

(Continued on Page 70)
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CATHOLIC EDUCATION

(Continued from Page 09)

at Eleventh and Washington Streets, directed the
building of a practical combination Church and
schcol edifice. The Sisters of St. Francis, Glen

Riddle, Pa., are in charge.

Lehigh County Schools

Throughout Lehigh County there are five
Parochial schools. In Catasauqua two pansh
schools are conducted: one in the parish of St.
Lawrence, and the other, in the parish of the
Annunciation, Blessed Virgin Mary, referred to as
St. Mary’s. Rev. Michael Munley s pastor of
St. Lawrence parish: Rev. Wilham Koenig s
pastor of St. Mary’s. St. Lawrence School was
begun 1n 1905 by Rev. Peter Quinn. St. Mary’s
School was begun by Rev. Henry Badde, in the
year of 1882. Both of these elementary schools
are taught by the Sisters of St. Francis from
Glen Riddle, Pa.

In Sules, the parish school of St. John the
Baptist was begun by Rev. John Seimetz in the
year of 1920. It was serviced from St. Mary’s
parish, Catasauqua. Today a modern combin-
ation Church and school building, bult by the
Rev. Charles A. Ruffenach, present pastor, has
proven a grand asset to the community. The
Sisters of St. Francis are in ck~rge of this school.

In Coplay, St. Peter’s . .mation Church
and school building was bu.. - ©  the present pastor
the Kev. Joseph Ostheimer, in 1928. School
children are taught by the Missionary Sisters of
the Sacred Heart, Bernharts, Pa.

The latest addition in the Parochial school
system in Lehigh County is St. Anne’s parish
school in Emmaus. This school was begun
September, 1949, by the present pastor, Rev.
Paul Pekarik, and the School Sisters of Ste.
Francis, from Pittsburgh, are in charge.

Central Catholic High

One of the finest educational institutions on
the secondary level in the Lehigh Valley is that

of Allentown Central Catholic Thgh  School.
The original building, referred to as NMonsignor
Masson Memonal bwlding, Fourth and Chew
house 40

Streets, was buwle in 1928 to

b4

students.  Rapid stnides as well as complete
support by Catholics of the  Lehigh Valley

necessitated the building of what is now known
as the Rockne Hall Administration buillding. 1t
was crected in 1942, This building project was
under the guidance of Re. Rev. Monsignor Leo
Gregory Fink, V.F. The school is looked upon
as one of the most modern in the State.  Recog-
mtion has been accorded famed Rockne Hall,
largest high school arena in the Staze of Penn-
sylvania, seating 3,600 people.  In 1946 a thud
floor was added to the Rockne Hall Admimstra-
tion building, increasing housing  “acilities  for
accommodation of 1,400 students.  As of 1930,
1,100 students from  forey-four parishes through-
out the Lehigh Vallev were in attendance.  The
school is administered by the Rev. Henry J. Hues-
man, M.A., who was appointed to the High School
i 1933, Included on cthe faculty are cight
Diocesan Catholic priests, thirty Rehgious teach-
ers, representing the following teaching orders:
Sisters of St. Francis, School Sisters of St. Francis,
Missionary Sisters of the Sacred Heart, Sister
Servants of the Immaculate Heart, and Sisters
of St. Joseph. In addition, there are five perman-

ent lay members of the faculey.

Ailentown Cathohie High School, founded m
1923, merged with Central Catholic High School
in the vear 1942 under the official title of Allen-
town Central Catholic High School. Since that
time Catholies of the Leligh Valley are afforded
the opportunity of sending their sons and daugh-
ters to onc of the most progressive Catholie co-

cducational high schools in the counury.

The entite Catholic school system in Lehigh
County is under the gmdance of Rev, Edward
Reilly, J.C.D., supennterdent of schools of the
Diocese of Philadelphia.
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“Allentoron’s leading [Home

They were vigorous days 12 1850 . . hife close
to the soil . . . void of labor-saving devices .+ ..
lacking even the simplest conveniences. People
turned from their beds long betyre the sunnse .
toiling all day and retired in the late hours of the
night.  Only the hardiest survived the extreme
ngors of those penlous days.

But a handful of states west of the Mississippi
had been admitted to the Union.  Indians roamed
that vast territory, hunted bison and nurdered
the pioneers who attempted to cross the Great
West in covered wagon trains.  Zachary Tavlor
died 10 1850 and was succeeded by Millard il
more, thirteenth President of the Uinitad Seates.
Queen Victoria ruled in England and in that year
a submarine cable was laid between that country
and our continent.  ‘The magnetic telegraph had
JllS( made its bow and the Tron Horse was making
its first daly runs out of Baltimore,

Against this background, the great house of
Isaac Benesch came into being in 1850 ., built of

the blood of proncers . . . established on the solid

Furnishers”

ALLENTOWN, Pa.

Celebrates 100th  Anniversary

foundation of rugged honesty . . . dedicated to
service. A century has passed.  Times have
changed . .. the outward world is a different place;
yet in spite of the face that this grand old store
has expanded enormously, the character of this
institution has not swerved one wta in the vears
that have intervened.

Today, after 100 years, this firm sull adheres
to the policier of Isaac Benesch.
pride thae thousands of our customers are children
of many who began with us years ago, while many
old folks still (h(‘llsh the furmture that years ago
made their house a “home”. The years stand as
a beacon commemorating the past and challenging
a more glorous future,

We pause and do homage to our leaders who
hiave built to a creed and our customers who have
measured that creed by the hand of Time and
found it good.  As vou have profited by coming
to chcscfn's .. s0 Benesch’s has profited by your
coming.  Within our doorway vou will find the
same warm hospitality and old-fashioned welcome
that was charactenistic of our first store in 1850.

It 1s a source of
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CHARIS

CHarts 15 a leading creator of Foundauon garments
sold directly to the consumer.

During the Firste World War it produced America’s
first one=picee garment-—Corse Twin—that combined
the maximum in comfort and control.  In the 19307
CHaris created an adjustable inner hele that ushered
in a brillkant new era i Corsetry,

The financial growth of the Charnis Corporation has
been rapid.  Established in 1914 and incorporated in
1923, CHaris moved to Allentown in 1929, By 1930
it had become America’s leading manufacturer of the

one-picce varment.  In 1932 a plant was opened

Canada to meet the tremendous Canadian demand
for the product.

Today more than five thousand Professional Corsetivres
carry CHARIS into pracucally every community on
the North American continent. Charis is advertised
in leading women's magazines from coast to coast.
This Company s a leading member of the Nauonal
Association of Direet Scllers, the Allentown Chamber
of Commicree, and the Betrer Business Bureau. 1t
hes a Friple A-1 ratng in Dun and Bradstreet.

The record of Chares demonstrates conclusively that
house 1o house selling 1s a grand Amencan business.

A Brief History of SEARS in Allentown

Sears, Roebuck and Company opened a
small store at 131 N. 7th Street in Allentown
in 1928. This store grew rapidly and store
was enlarged. Plans for bulding a new
store were taking shape when World War 11
curtailed building.

At the close of the war, plans were agun
made for a new building and on February
Sth, 1948, a new store was formally opened
at 7th and Allen Streets. This new structure,
modern in every respect, is a most complete
department store. It has 65,000 square feet
of selling space and 35,000 square feet of
stockroom, plus a 35,000 square foot farm
store and a 30,000 square foot modern ware-
house on Union Boulevard.  The store s
healthfully air-conditioned for the comfort
of the customers. Adjacent to the store 15 a

SEARS,

farge parking lot for the convenience of
sears customers.  The store has three selling
tloors with 46 complete departments.  The
third floor 1s devoted to offices and stock-
room. In addition to selling merchandise,
Sears have a complete automotive service
station together with thear modern Farm
Store. This service station has four service
pits capable of handling twelve cars.
William A, Hillwig of 425 N, 22nd Street,
Allentown 1s manager of the store, having
come to Allentown in June 1947, Personnel
required to stafy this store 1s well over three
hundred.  Most of these people are native
Allentonians or local people. The majority
of the stores’ employees are stock holders in
the company, sharing the company’s profits
through membership in the Sears Profit
Sharing Funrd,

ROEBUCK AND CO.




MODERN ALLENTOWN HOUSING, including apartment dwellings, new safetyv-plan residential park, and one house
of many which grace city's well-zoned western section.

73



MUHLENBERG COLLEGE CAMPUS, Ax Ak View From Tue Sourh




Muhlenberg College

Dr. Joux D. M.

Muhlenberg College began with an adea
the mind of a man 177 vears ago in 1773, In
the city of Philadelphya, a 60 vear old nussionary
pastor, trained at the University of Goettingen,
pondered the vital problem of higher education
among the scattered Lutherans of Pennsylvama,
After 30 vears i America, he reahzed “that the
Church could never be properly planted in the
new world without a well educated mumistry and
an intelhigent Ley grounded in Christiamity.
For this “higher school” of learming, he gathered
funds and secured a tract of land near Philadel-
phia, but the drums and cannon of the Revolu-
tonary War silenced Henry Mcdlchior Mublen-
berg’s appeals.  The college he planned was not
established in lus hfetime.  The man died, but
his 1dea hived on.

Seventy-five vears passed.  The Lutheran
Church grew and mulaplied  throughout two
generations.  And then in Allentown - Muhlen-
berg's idea was reborn in the nund of another
Lutheran clergyman, Samucl K. Brobst. Through
the zeal and tireless cfforts of this far-sighted
Pennsylvama-German  minmister and  pubhisher,
Allentown Semunary was established in 1848 for
the education of the yvouth of this commumty in
the Chnsaian wav of life. This classical school
prospered and finally attained college grade in 1864
under the name of Allentown Collegiate Institute.

Meanwhile, the Mimisterium of Pennsyivania,
founded by Mublenberg, revived his idea of a
synodical college wm the castern part of the state.
An energetic committee of Pennsvlvama-German
clergyvmen and lavmen led by Samuel Brobst,
after seven  years of negotiations,  purchased
Allentown Collegiate Institute for the Mumister-
wm.  They gave the mstiate a new name,
Muhlenberg College, in honor of the illustrious
patriarch of the Lutheran Church i Ameriea,
and they clected his distinguished  great-grand-

son, Dr. Frederick A, Muhlenberg, president of

the voung institution.  Thus was fulfilled in
Allentown, 80 vears after Henry Melchior Muh-
lenberg’s death, his idea and his dream of a
Church College in Pennsylvania.

fe was o small school, eight professors and
twenty five students, with all its facilities housed

by

Browx

in a single building.  The nine years of the first
administration were a period of real tnals and
hardships, self-denials and genuine fortitude on
the part of faculty and trustees. Nevertheless,
President Muohlenberg succeeded 1in establishing
the school on a firm foundation academically and
obtaining an endowment fund of $42,000 before
his resignation to accept a professorship of Greek
in the Universiey of Pennsylvania in 1876.

The next mine vears saw a strengthening of
the faculty and an improvement of the financial
structure of the college.  During this adminis-
tration of Dr. Benjanmin Sadtler, two large gifts
were given the institution to endow two professor-
ships: the Asa Packer Professorship of the Natural
and  Applied  Sciences the Mosser-Keck
Professorship of the Greek Language and Liter-

and

ature.

When illness compelled the retirement of
President Sadtler, the vacancy was filled by the
election of a member of the faculty, Dr. Theodore
I.. Seip, professor of Greek. Professor Seip, an
enminent classical scholar, had been associated
with Muhlenberg College from the beginning of
its existence.  He had assisted President Muhlen-
berg in preparing the College’s curnculum and
had served as its financial agent.  He had seen
the mstitution through 1 cntcal period of de-
pression, and faltening finances.

Expansion Of College

Under President Seip’s guidance, the College
became more secure financially and began to
exert a greater influence throughout the Mimster-
inm. Dr. Seip and his trastees fele chat the aime
had come with the beginning of the Twentieth
Century to move the college from its downtown
location at Fourth and Walnut Streets to a larger
and more desirable site at the western limits of
the city.  Accordmgly, a tract of farm land at
Twenty-fourth and Chew Streets was purchased.
The Administration Building and the front part
of East Hall dormutories were the first buildings
crected on this campus.

(Continued on Page 70)
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Dr. J. A. W. Haas Builds

President Seip died in the seventeenth year of
his administration, before the college was trans-
ferred to its present location.  Another president,
Dr. John A. W, Haas, scholarly pastor of a large
New York City Lutheran congregation was des-
tined to lead the college onto the new campus in
January 1905, ushering i a new and greater
era for Muhlenberg.  The school was sull small
and little known outside of Lutheran circles.
Less than one hundred students and ten professors
comprised the school’s personnel.

During the thirtv-two vears of Dr. Haas's
adnumistration, real progress was made toward
further development of the physical plant, -
crease of its student body and faculty, raising of
academic standards and atcnment of a high
position among colleges of Pennsylvania.

From 1904 to 1936, the student body grew to
nearly 450; the faculty was increased from  ten
to more than thirey.  The endowment fund
mounted to nearly one million dollars.

A dining hall, athletic field, stately memorial
chapel, new and better dormitories, a science
building and a library were built on the campus.

Students were encouraged to continue their
studies 1n graduate schools.  During these vears,
manv Muhlenberg men entered universities here
and abroad, winning distinction for themselves
and their college in various fields of learning.

A large extension school was organized to
enable teachers to complete their studies for a
college degree. To this school, women were
admitted and given academic degrees upon the
successful completion of their work,

When the United States went to war in 1917,
scores of Muhlenberg men enlisted and were
sent to Plattsburg for army officer training.
Those who remained on the campus were put into
uniforms and enrolled in the school’s own Student
Army Training Corps.

Dr. Haas’s imtiative and hard work led to
growth and achievement, widening influence and
increasing reputation for Muhlenberg College.

Planning For The Future

The fifth and present president of the College
was inducted into office in 1937, His adminis-

tration has been marked by another critical period
in the transition of Muhlenberg. World War 11
and s aftermath have had a distinet effect upon
the normal academic development.

In the pre-war pertod of Dr. Levering Tvson's
adminstration, the student body continued 1o
grow until 1t reached a pomne shightly under 600,
New courses were added to the curricolum and
the faculty was increased. The school expanded
its  facilities into the bulding  which  housed
Allentown Preparatory School giving the institu-
tion one of the best freshman dormitories i the
cast.

At the outbreak of World War I1, Muhlenberg

men by the score enhsted i the armed forees.
The school atself enlisted its services and ook
on the responsibilities of a4 Navy training pro-
gram.  More thais 2,000 sailors and manines,

most  of  whom lacer received  commissions s
ensigns and sccond hieutenants, were traimed on
the campus. The Navy, as a result, awarded
Muhlenberg College its laghest cication for work
well done.  Meanwhile, 2,070 of  the
alumm and students served o ouniform and 37

gave their lives for their country.

St‘h.')()]

The end of the war brought a new problem
to President Tyson and his board of trustees.
Hundreds of  vetcrans
Mubhlenberg.  The mstatution’s
therefore expanded to the utmost to admie 1,350
The faculty was incereased to more

sought admission  to

facilities  were

students.
than 100.

Muhlenberg College is now emerging from the
hectic peniod which marked the post-war period
in educational circles.  The school has passed
through another critical period in its development
and has become stronger and better.  Plans for
the future include improvements and additions
to the physical plant and the possible introduction
of coeducation into the school’s program,

Thus, after 100 years, Muhlenberg College
looks mto the future from a firm foundation with
the ability and desire to better serve the com-
munity and the Church from which it took root.

Nearly 8000 men have graduated from the
institution.  Muhlenberg men can be found in
45 States and 14 foreign countries. Of the
graduates, 3,700 have taken residence in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,



e

C. A. DORNEY

A half century of progress under the slogan,
“Quality Merchandise  Backed by Intelligent
Service” has brought renown to the Co AL Dorney
Furniture Co.- a business which was .lll(‘.ld\ 38
vears old when it established tself ar 612 Hamil-
ton Street, in 1910,

The six story structure, with its 45,000 square
fect of floor area, has become a meeea for discrim-
nating purchasers of home furnishings throughout
Fastern Pennsylvania.  What was once a furm-
ture business exclusively has grown into an enter-
prisc of five large departments: furniture, floor
coverings, draperies, appliances and decorating,

One of the most significant accomplishments of
the company during the past genel .mnn is .uqm-
sition ()H the night to handle several “exclusive”
and ¢ pedngrccf types of furniture.  Dorney’s
is the only store in this area which is a dealer-
member of the Grand Rapids Furniture Makers
Guild.  Other exclusive styles handled ave
Tructype (solid maple and cherry); Habitent
(knotty pine); Kmdel (mahogany reproductions);
Precedent, Modern and Imperial, as well as
Statton Reproductions.

The C. A. Dorney is the outgrm\th of a furm-
ture manufacturing business started in 1872 by the

DO Rl‘l

LAY
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FURNITURE CO.

man for whom the bustness is named. [t was then
known as Dorney, Berkemever Co. In 1877, the
company expanded to start 1ts retal business,
then located on the site of the present Central
Railroad station.

The first store building was destroyed by fire
and in 1880 a structure was built at Race and
Linden Streets. This was also destroved by fire
and for a ume the business was conducted at
335 Hamulton Street.

Real impetus in the growteh of the business came
duning the period from 1885 to 1932 when the late
Charles Zicgentus was a member of the firm. He
surchased the business outright in 1898, and, aided
wy his sons, the store now nuupled by Dorney’s
at 612 Hamileon Strece was built, opening May
10, 1910.

Carrying on the business with the same integ-
rity and concern for community welfare shown by
their predecessors are these officers and directors:
Presu‘ent, Jeremy Fisher; Vice-President, Mrs.

Manne bﬂ).mg, Secretary, Mrs. Madaline Z.
Carmun; Treasurer, Hnrrv B. ). Metzger, and

Mrs. Frank C. Mueller, Mrs. Helen S.” Weber,
Mrs. Helen Z. Fisher, and Charles E. Ziegenfus Jr.
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I Sfep
with Gﬂlmfow;z

Back in November, 1934, Food Fair Stoves, Inc.
brought Allentown its first supermarket under the
name of the “Giant Quality Food Price Cutter”.

In those days, food supermarkets were sull in
their infancy and the selection of Allentown as
the site of one of Food Fair's carliest supermarkers
(actually its fifth) was an indication of faich n
Allentown’s future and potential.

Since that time, Food Fair located two more
markets in Allentown, changing their name to
“The Giant”’ and then to “‘Food Fair”, Amencan’s
Finest Food Department Stores. The second was
opened in August, 1937 and the third in February,
1938. Public acceptance had made the super-
market an integral part of the American scence . . .
and Food Fair grew with Allentown’s progress.

Final proof of faith in Allentown’s future was
the complete rebuilding and  modernization of
Food Fair's market at 7th and Allen Streets, con-
summated on March 30 this yvear. One of Allen-
town’s finest commercial edifices, this completely
new store replaced one located on the same site

since 1937. The most modern of Food Fur's
113 markets now located in seven Eastern States,
this mid-century “Food Department Store,” em-
bodying such innovations as self-service Mecat,
Dairy, Dchcatessen and Grocery Departments
and super-speed checkout, is dedicated by rhe
ren and women of Food Fair to the better, more
efficient service of the people of Allentown, Pa.

Food Fair is “in step” with Allentown!

FrienovrLy, CONVENIENTLY

| 3

Loca1ep Foon Fair MARKETS

913 WALNUT STREET — SEVENTH AND ALLEN STREETS - MADISON AND LIBERTY STREETS




EGNER HARTZEL MEMORIAL CHAPEL, MUHLENBERG COLLEGE
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ADMINISTRATION BUTEDING, CEDAR CREST CANMPUS



Cedar Crest College

J. Hexry Brownw

Although 1867 s generally considered as the
date of the founding of a college for women in
Allentown, the school which 1s now known as

Cedar Crest College had its start in a number of

carlier unsuccessful attempts at establishing a
voung ladies school.

[n 1813, the hirst school for girls wis opened
here but was soon out of existence.  In the "40s,
a female seminary was founded by Rev. Andrew
S. Young of Quakercown. Nl health and the carly
death of the founder cut shore the hife of ths
institution.

Meceanwhile, another msotutuon,  Allentown
Senunary, had opened v the commumey.  Its
original purpose was to tran male. and female
teachers, but when this venture appeared not
very successful, the Semmary developed inte
classical school under the direction of 1ts principal,
Rev. Chnstian R. Kessler.

The impact of the Civil War forced a complete
reorganization of this school; 1t emerged in 1864
as the Allentown Collegiate Institute and Nhlicary
Academy but sull muintained its female depare-
ment i the classical school.  Finallv, after ats
onl; president resigned, the venture faled on
June 16, 1867.

A new start was made, however, and out of
the ashes of che defunct Institute grew two strong
colleges, one for the education of young men, and
the other, Allentown Female College, for the
education of women,

Thus, in 1867, the same vear in which Allen-
town became a city, a combination of civic and
Church interests were responsible for the forma-
tion of a girls’ school. The founders’ aim was to
estiiblish a school with full collegiate powers whose
goal would be distinguishing 1tself for religious
influence as well as the thorough cultivation of
the mind. This school was opened on the fifth of
September under the supervision of the Eastern
Pennsylvania Classis of the Reformed Church
with Rev. William R. Hofford appointed as acting
president on September 16.  The student body
numbered eight on the opening day but increased
to fifteen by the end of the first week. Classes
were held in the lecture room of Zion Reformed
Church. The college charter was granted by the

Court of Lebigh County during June, 1868, and
Allentown Female College was othcially estab-

hshed.

Early Days of College

During the early months of its operation, the
College moved from Zion Church to the Hecker
bulding on Hamilton  Sereet where  classes
continued until the close of the second school
vear.  Meanwhile, the trustees acquired a site
at LFourth and Turner Streets, a gift of Hon.
Robert F. Wright, and erected a building which
would accommodate fifey boarding students.

This new bulding was formally opened on
November 3, 1869, The school grew and prosper-
ed under the direction of President Hofford and
during his fifteen vear admnistration 574 students
were enrolled on the college register and the
alumnae rolls numbered exactly 100.  Durning
this period, a new Classis, known as Lehigh
Classis, was formed and this group assumed half
the responsibility of the operation of the institn-
tion.

On Apnl 16, 1883, the man considered as the
founder of Allentown Female College, tendered
his resignation to the board because of ill health.
He was replaced by Rev. Walter E. Krebs, a man
well-grounded 1in religious and educational acuv-
ies.

Under his direction, the long-discussed plans
for enlarging the school building became a realicy
and early n 1884, a 53 by 40 foot, four story
addition to the institute was completed.

I health took this president from the school
after only a hetle more than one year service;
direction of the College was taken over by scholar-
ly Dr. Wiliam M. Reilly. During his admims-
tration and partly through the influence of his
talented daughter, Louisa, the music and art
departments of the young college gained wide
recognition in the area.

The man who was to be the last president of
the school under its original name resigned in
July, 1892, to accept a call to a Church in Wyo-
ming, Delaware, ‘The whole Church was saddened

(Continued on Page 82)



82

CEDAR CREST COLLEGE

(Continued from Page 81)

by the death of Dr. Reilly which came just a few
months after leaving the College.

School Is Renamed

In 1893, the College received a new charter,
a new name and a new president.  The charter
carried with it the authorization for conferring
degrees upon women completing a four year
course of study. The new name was Allentown
College for Women; the man who took over the
helm was Dr. J. Wilham Knappenberger., -

This president, followed by Dr. D. E. Schoed-
ler and then Dr. Thomas Land, led the school
through a transitional period of 16 years which
saw it leave the direct jurisdiction of the Classes
of the Church and become a part of the Eastern
Svnod of the Reformed Church.  From this
time on, the College was an integral part of the
svnodical functions of the Reformed and later
Evangelical and Reformed Church.  Transter
of authonity to the Eastern Synod was hnally
settled in 1907 after 11 years of negotiations.
An endowment fund was created from gifts to
the school during these vears.

Cedar Crest Is Born

In 1908, the acceptance of the presidency by
Dr. Wilham F. Curtis ushered in a period of new
and vigorous growth of the now well-established
institution.  Under his able gumdance, n 1912,
the school purchased the tract of land cutside
the western city hmits which was to become
its present home.

Work on this site progressed slowly and it
wasn’t until the opening of the 1915 school term
that the College moved to its more spacious
accommodations. During this waiting period,
President Curtis suggested that the institution’s
name be changed to Cedar Crest College; this
proposal was accepted.

During the years following World War I,
Cedar Crest College’s growth was rapid and the

school’s foundation broadened and strengthened.
Buildings on the new site became madequate and
new ones were added.  An Alumnae Association
was formed and became a motivating factor m
the nstitution’s development.  Student enroil-
ment grew and the faculty increased proportion-
atelv. At the ame of the 1940 commencement,
Dr. Curus’s last, the student body numbered
close to 300.

The culture and traditions of the College were
heightened duning President Curtis’s tenure and
the school became recogmzed by the Association
of American Colleges. The annual Greek Drama
and Open Door Ceremony became traditional
occurences looked forward to by citizens through-
out the arvea.

Dr. Curts dhed on May 5, 1941, in St. Augus-
tine, Flonda., He had directed the hfe of Cedar
Crest and its antecedent for 33 vears and left
it a thriving cducational institution.

It remained for his successor, Dr. Dale H.
Moore, to lead the College to its nghtful place
among the educational institutions of the country.
After Dr. Moore had been n ofhice for two years,
1944, the College gained full accreditation from
the Middle States Association of Colleges and
Secondary Schools.

Dunng the cight years of Dr. Moore’s presi-
dency, the financial status of the College has im-
proved and the curriculum has been expanded o
include such courses as nursing education and the
traimng of medical technologists, both approved
by the American Medical Association.  The
Alumnae Association has been greatly strengthen-
ed and the efforts of that body have resulted in
the construction of a beautiful Alumnae Hall
on the campus.

With her 80th anntversary behind her, Cedar
Crest College can look back with pride over the
years of steady growth to her present strong
position and forward with confidence to years of
stabihty and increasing influence among institu-
tions of highet learning.



AMERICUS HOTEL

ALLENTOWN'S FINEST

326 RooMms

326 BAaTHs

Atk Conprrionep DiNiNG RooMs AND
CockTall LOuNGE
AR CONDITIONED BALLROOM

CATERING TO Banguets 10 To 1000

ANDREW ]. SorDONI, President
Harry W. CLARK, General Manager
Eirmer E. HEIMBACH, Resident Manager
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HOTEL TRAYLOR

ALLENTOWN, PA.

“The Hotel Traylor has been a landmark i the
City of Allentown throughout the years, catering

to a distinctive clientele”.
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Beauty and Recreation

From City Park Department Files

The City of Allentown has no better adver-
using medium than its park system, acclaimed
far and wide as one of the best in the country.

That system today, with its far-flung 1,132
acres of land- more than 1,000 of which are
developed---1s a far cry from the almost parkless
city which Allentown was ac the begntming of
the century.  In fact, as late as 1924 when city
fathers bagan to dream of a city of parks, there
were only 24 acres of land put to use for purposes
of public recreation.  Parks then were Allen,
Wese and Raver Frone, plus portions of what
we now know as Founvamn and Jordan parks.

T wasain 1924 thar B. AL Haldeman, nationally
known caity  planning  cousulrant, was brought
here through the influence of the late General
Harry Clay Trexler.  He provided the plans
necessary for developmeat of the growing city
and . Franklin Nechan, Mo Airy, was the
architect who Laid out ehe parks.

Mcehan was the man who planned West
Park, authorized in 1906, Although  Allen
park 1s generally considered as the aity’s firse
public beauty spot, 1t did not actually become
aty park property until 1908,

West Park, built on < site ongimally purchased
for a reservoir, was recommended by General
Trexler, who had hired Mechan to lay out in
parklike beauty the land surrounding Spring-
wood, his summer home. At death, General
Trexler willed his summer estate to Allentown
and the 142-acre tract has since been renam-
ed ‘I'rexler Memorial Park.

Soon after West and Allen Parks were estab-
lished, the former as a horticultural retreat
and the latter as a (it setting for historic Trout
Hall, home of the city’s founder, it became
apparent that a need existed for recreational
facilities for children and young people of Allen-
town. There was much talk, meetings with the
city council of the day and advancement of
various proposals.  Finally, in 1912, the city’s
first playground was established at [l‘ountain
Park, cast of the municipal pumping station, by
;{committee headed by Mr. and Mrs. Percy B.

uhe.

Mr. Ruhe, editor of the Morning Call, was
vigorous in his advocacy for establishment of
recreational facilities, both in newspaper col-
wimns and at Parent-Teacher Association and
other meetings.  He is recognized as '‘father of
Allentown’s playground svstem’ just as General
Trexler is remembered as the man who made
Allentown’s great park system a possibility.

It was during the lush '20s that the late Mayor
Malcolm Gross dreamed of the possibilities of
a rose garden, a place set aside where roses of
all types could be grown ana be enjoyed by
cach cizizen.  His dream reculted in che planning
of the Rose Garden along Cedar Parkway which
today  bears Malcolm Gross’s name. It was
dedicared in 1931 and has been so well received
that it has been the subject of newspaper and
magazime stories in many varts of the Umited
hrates.

Today the Rose Garden is just mne segment
of a long, rambling parkway of more rhan 90
acres, adjacent to the parklike campuses of
Cedar Crest and Mublenberg Colleges and the
mipressive  Allentown  High  School  stadium.
Along that parkway are the Old  Fashioned
Garden, a retreat established for growing
profuston the myriad colorful annuals known to
every home gardener; the Allentown Are Museum:
Cedar Beach, one of the aty’'s most popular
bathing resorts: Lake Mullenberg, loved by
fishermen and  nature  worshipers  alike;  the
Meadow, where archery meets are conducted,
and the picnic grounds.

Little Lehigh Parkway, compnsing 493 acres,
was acquired in 1929, The parkway was develop-
ed during the ’30s providing many hours of
work for then jobless Allentonians during the
depression vears.  Today it stands out as one
of the most beautiful links in Allentown’s entire
chain of parks. It includes picnic grounds, a
heavily stocked trout stream, the recently con-
verted Lil-Le-Hi Tri-Club Trout Nursery, bridle
paths, scenic roadways for motoring and pictur-
esque walkways for those who enjoy strolling.

Developed more recently, in 1940, was East
Side or Irving Park, which fronts on Irving Street
(Continued on Page 90)
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Establiched 1905

T. R. SChOLL

L. H. SCHOLL

President a nd Fownder

Forty-five vears ago last March an ambitious
young man, who alwayvs had the desire to go into
business for himself,” and who had previously
been a ritroad spike maker, ribbon weaver, and
salesman for the L. H. Yeager Co., organized
the firm of 1. H. Scholl Co., Wholesale Varety
Store, the first of its kind 1 Allentown.  The
business was located at Seventh & Linden Streets.
Mr. Scholl, for the first ten years, performed the
duties of buvmg and selling for s firm, calling
on his customers with a horse and buggy.

Five vears later, the company moved to its
present site, 24 North Seventh Street, so that
more items and more stock could be added to
the constantly increasing business.  Within the
last fifteen years the company has become known
for its lines of housewates, hotel, club and restaur-
ant supplies, and all kinds of lmlul.nv merchandise.
The firm takes pride in acclaiming itself the oldest
toy whalesaler, as well as hotel, club, and restaur-
ant supply wholesaler in the Lchigh Valley.

E. H.

Pice-Dresident and Salew Mor.

In 1935 Ted Scholl, son of . H. Scholl, was
taken in to the firm upon his graduation from
college.  In 1948 Mr. L. H. Scholl retired to an
inactive part in the business and relinguished the
operation of the firm to his son.

Today the company covers a radius of 50 nules
of Allentown and has six salesmen calling on
department, hardware, drug, grocery, varnety,
and general stores, as well as hotels, clubs, and
restaurants, and insticitions.

Friendship 1s the kevstone around which any
successful business must be hule -~ without it
no one can long survive.  Forty-five good vears
hie behind this hrm and forty-hve plus good vears
are ahead of it. The company is grateful to 1ts
more than 2000 customers for the loval support
the  have given in the past and 1t s sincerely
hoped that the friendly customer relations w hich
exist now may continue for many years to come.

There are 15 employees at present; six of which
have given a total of over 175 yvears' service.

SCHOLL CO., INC.

WHOLESALERS

24 NORTH SEVENTH STREET

ALLENTOWN, PA.



BEAUTY and RECREATION

(Continued from Page ¥7)

between Union Boulevard and Hanover Avenue.
Designed for recreational purposes, this park
boasts Allentown’s finest swimming pool, several
baseball diamonds, tennis and volleyball courts
and other facilities for play purposes. It teems
with crowds from early June ull summer’s end
and offers residents of the 14th and 15th Wards
outdoor fun opportunities never before attain-
able in that area.

Aside from being a thing of beauty, Trexler
Memorial Park has become a wild game bird
refuge. The city owns several hundred ducks,
geese and swans of various breeds, all of which
can be seen on the park ponds almost any day of
the year. Added to these each fall are thousands
of wild fowl which use the park as a stopover
on their flights south.

Trexler Park offers other things of interest.
Its floratorium, in which plants used in the famed
lamp standard ‘“‘hanging gardens” are grown,
boasts a tropical house in which orchids grow in
profusion, as do palms, banyans and other plants
native to equatorial countries.  LFach October
the City Park Department sponsors free of
charge a chrysanthemum show n the floratorium
which has been rated by leading park authorities
as among the best in the country.

Union Terrace, laid out on a 2l-acre plot,
features an amphi-theatre and a pond which 1s
used for fishing by small boys in summer, and
for skating in winter. The Terrace includes
picnic grounds and a softball field.  Its develop-
ment was a major step forward in city planning
because it was built over what had been & mos-
quito-infested swamp.

Picnic parks other than those mentioned are
South Mountain and East Side Reservoir, both

rustic. River Front, Fountan and Jordan afford
70 acres of recreational area, while Roosevelr
Park in the 16th Ward, covenng seven acres,
provides a play spot for voung folks of that
region.  In addition, the school districe opens
all school grounds for summer play purposes and
qualified instructors are provided for cach.

Looking into the future, the Park Depare.
ment has obtained 145 acres of land just noreh
of ‘Trexler Memorial Park which is to be develop-
ed mto a Municipal Golf Course. Tt s expected
that the course will be ready for use within the
next five years.  Also acquired are 16 acres of
land along Trout Creek in the 12ch Ward,  When
funds are available chis acreage will be cleaned
and  beautifiecd and plans are to construct
swimnung pool for use oi" south side residents.

Nincteenth Ward Memonal Park, a recrea-
tonal arca at the extreme south end of the cry,
was purchased by aitizens of the ward.  Parually
developed, 1t will some day be turned over to the
city for maintenance purposes.  This tract, which
lies along the cast branch of Trout Creck, s
adjacent to the 12th Ward Land now owned by
the oy,

never  fuml to impress

According to “Girard” m

Allentown’s  Parks
visitors to the city.
the  Philadelphia  Inquirer
“In time, Allentown will have the most beautiful
park system in Amenica” The Pennsylvama
Fconomy League, which made a thorough study
of the system, reporeed, ““The City of Alentown
is fortunate mn having a park system which for
lavout and beauty of location is second to none.”
The New York Times has acclaimed, “Allentown’s
park system as a city’s success story.”

writing i 1935 -

“Relative to that feature of Old Home Week which has to do

with a rededication of our American hentage, much credit s due to
the American Heritage Foundation for its enthusiastic cooperation”.

Mavor Donarp V. Hock
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We are very happy to join with you in the observance of Old Home Week and
sincerely hope that veu enjoy every moment of it

While many new faces have beer added to our orgamzation since its formation
thivty vears ago there ave still a number of us who have grown up with the auto indusery,

serving vou from the days of the old “one-lungers” to the present.

Our constant thought has been vour riding pleasure. To that end through advo-
cating better highways, through partcipation in state and local safety campagas,
and through careful inspection and repair of vour car we have endeavored to give vou
complete assurance of the utmost possible safety on the road.

We have assumed our community obligations through the support of various civic
projects, contributions of our time and money to the betterment of the community. This
attitude has found expression in our participation m various welfare agency campaigns,
capital fund raising campaigns and our cooperation i the public school vocational
cducation program.

As dealers, handling the Hinest motor cars in the world, qualified by expenence
and traiming, and cquipped to offer vou the best possible service for your car, we urge

vou to call upon your dealer when confronted with any motoring problen.

New Car Dealers Association of Allentown

affiliated <eith the

CHAMBLER OF CONNERCE.

D & H Pontiac Co. Arpen Maclerran, Inc

Dant MoTors ALLENTOWN, INC. Perers Motor Co.

Jack Dankin Cuevrovrer Rirrer & Yost Moror Car Co.
Dierricn Moror Car CoMPANY Rune Motor Core.
Fenstermacher & Rems Co. V. H. Stecke, Inc.

HupsoN ALLENTOWN Town Avro Co.

Lenien Motor CoMpPANY TurNErR MoOTORS

Twin Crry Motors, Inc.
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City's Oldest Bakery

The name “HEIMBACH and tasty baking products under the trade name
“Dueren Mam™ have been iinked in close associations since 1913, That was the
vear Oswin A Henabach started baking at Ninth and Tilghman Streets, Allentown,
where the present modern machine equipped plant now stands.

In 1916 the Real Estate of Hemmbach Baking Company had a frontage on
Tilghman Streee of 78 feet, comprising 901-903-905-907 ‘Tilghman Street,

In 1920 property at 907, “Hilghman was added and i 1926 the quarters
were again enlarged to include 909 Tilghman Street. Since 1913 many thousands
of bread loaves and tasty bun packages have passed from Heimbachs to the good
people of this community.

The management and ownership of the Company has at all ames consisted
of local people. Oswin A, Heimbach was the firse president. He was succeeded
by Ravmond G, Fetzer, followed by Harold AL Schantz, then John F. Dickelbohn.
In 1947 the Company was succeeded by Hemmbach Baking Corporation whose
president and general manager s Donald Ko Normington, a hifetme resident of
this community.,

HEIMBACH BAKING COMPANY

KINTZEL’S x One of Nation's Leading Appliance Stores

When a reeat organization ascends to a position of ciinence
in its field in hietle more than ten vers, it has performed the
nent to impossible. Yer, that s exactly the story and the
record of Kisizers, Inc., the Lehigh Valley's outstanding
apphiance store.  And, in fact, Kintzels is one of the nation's
largest exclusive apphance-radio-television retailers.

Begun in 1939 by Harry E. Kintzel, at 1024 Hamilton
Street, the business was moved to 913 Hamilton Street during
the war vears. Since then the growth of the organization has
been so rapid as to nccessitate the expansion of sales and
service facilities. The initial result was the acquisition of a large
warchouse property at 443-45 North 1th Street in Allentown
where more than 10,000 square feet of floor space is devoted
to storage facilities and a modernly cquipped service depare-
ment for major appliances.

Then, a little less than a vear ago, Kintzels acquired a retail
store at 19th and Main Stereets in Northampton (formerly
Luckenbach’s) in order to widen their facilities for the benefit
of peaple in the cement regions.

The next step was a to provide larger quarters for improving
display conditions in the Allentown location. This was done
by adding the adjoining building at 915 Hamilton Street——
a move which doubled Kinteels quarters in the Queen Cicy.
This occasion will be remembered by folks all over the valley
who came 1o help Kintzels celebrate the event with a pala
“Open House Week” this pas: April.

To establish the fact that Kinezels is a complete apphance
store and tops in its field is best demonstrated by enumerating
the items they sell and the big names they represent.

Thesc include General Electric ranges, washers, refrigerators,
dishwashers, vacuum cleaners, water heaters, television, radio-
honographs, freczers; Philco refrigerators, home freczers,
CA Victor television and radio-phonographs; Maytag,
Bendix and Spced Queen washers; Kelvinator refrigerators,

freczers and ranges; DuMont Television, Motorola television
and radio-phonographs: Sparton television and radio-phono-
praphs; sinks, gas and electric ranges and countless small
apphances, such as clectric clocks, toasters, Vornado fans, and
s0 on.

In addition, Kirtzels mamtain a complete sewing center
which features the Domestic Sewmachine and sewing services
hike button and buckle covering, bele making, hempung and
others. The sewing center is traly a showplace in its ficld -
a modern department that offers evervehing to the woman
inclhiding sewing courscs.

‘There are more than a half-hundred people in Kintzels, Inc.
who devote their best efforts to installation and service, sales
assistance, ofhce and admmistrative tasks. They are pains-
takingly schooled and constantly trained so as to be able to
render completely satisfactory assistance to every Kintzel
customer, new and old.

‘The corporation, headed by Harry E. Kintzel, president,
and Paul R. Miller, vice-president and general manager, has
certainly achieved its prominence through straight-thinking,
aggressive action cou )Ic(| withawarmspintof friendlinessanda
keen appreciation of'thc warfts and needs of the people of this
area. But, every member of the organizadon will readily
agree that a great deal of their success isidentificd with the
rapid growth of the City of Allentown as one of the outstanding
retail centers of the country.

During this “Home-Coming’ Celcbration, Kintzels cordially
invites everybody to drop in for a visit.  There is a lot to sce
anytime but, especially (ﬂlring this week, displays and denion-
strations of an extraordinary nature will be presented for che
education and enjovment of all visitors.  Feel free to st
walk in and look around. Kintzels is a friendly store, where
everyone 1s welcome,
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Churches of Allentown

since  the vear 1762, when Allentown was
lanned, 1t has been a church-going community.
Fhat same vear a log church was constructed on
the site that s today occupied by historic Zion
Evangelical and Reformed Chureh, and it was in
such humble circumstance
the Retormed and Lutheran faiths gathered to
pay tribute to God.

In this year of 1950 che aey has a total of 106
congregations of many faiths, one church for every
1,OOO residents. Leading in numerical stl(llgt'l
are the Lutheran Church with 16, congregations,
Retormed  Church with 13, Roman  Catholic
Church with 11 and EFyvangeheal (nn;,l(g.mnn.nl
Church with seven,

Soon after orgamzation of the union log church
at what is now Church and Hamilton Streets, the
Reformed congregation constructed a Lirger, more
adequate edifice while the Lutheran congregation
continued to worship in the onginal building. Tt
was i the Reformed Church structure that the
Laberty: Bell was dden for the duration of the
Revolutionary War from September, 1777,

The present magnificent Zion itvangelical and
Reformed Church building was constructed in the
vears 1880, ISS7 and 1888, Alentown's second
cldest Reformed Chureh congregation, St. John's,
was formed from a nuclews of tormer Zion members
who wanted stnietly Enghsh Linguage serviees.
\lnst of the services at Zion m those davs were in
the German language.

The Lutheran congregation, which joined the
Zxiom Reformed group in building Allentown’s
onginal house of worship, remained within the
wialls of the old lTog house untill 1794, when land
was purchased along South Fighth Street, between
Hamlton and Walnue, and a new home was plan-
ned. The u)n;,,l(gumn did not adope the name
“St. Paul’s” unul 18535, The beautiful stone
structure 1t now occuptes was buile i 1905,

Although there was no Roman Catholic Church
in Allentown until 1856, when the Church of the
Immaculate Conception was bule ar Ridge Ave.
and Liberty Street, there were missions here sinee
1757. Until the end of the Revolutionary War
there were no regular schedules for masses, but
socn thereafter they were conducted ona monthly
basis and as the Catholic population grew, far
more frequently.

Following the building of the Church of the
Immaculate Conception, the Church of the Sacred
Heare was constructed. The congregations of
these churches mothered  practically  all other
Catholic churches and missions in Allentown and
vicimty and are responsible for satisfying many
other community needs.

that worshipers of

Trimty Evangelical Congregational - Church,
oldest of 1ts drnommation, stemmed from Salem
Fovangelical United Brethren congregation, which
was st of its seet. Salem, founded i 1835, was
originally of the Evangeheal fath and continued
so until the recent merger of the FEvangelical and
United Brethren Churches.

There was a denonunational difference i 1894
and that resulted in formation of what was then
Triniey United Evangehical congregation. “This
denomination has since vanished and has been
supplanted by the E \.mgtlu.nl Congregational
faith, fourth in numerical strength in the ciey.
The Evangelical United Brethren Church today
has six congregations in Allentown,

The Preshyvrerian Churchias eredited with organ-
izing  the fist Allentown  congregation which

winted strictly Fnghsh language services. That
was in 18335, Services thereafter were conducted
at varnous |)|.uts for some time. 1t was not untl
1902 that First Preshyterian congregation buile
the handsome pillared edifice which faces North

Iifth Street at Court Street,

Grace Church, first of the Episcopal denomin-
ation, was organized in 1838 and the congregation
built its present home seven vears later. Theres
only one other, Mediator, and a mission.  First
lhpnst was organized 1 1859 .m(l todayv, with
Twelfth Streer: Baptist, represents that faith.
The first Mennonite Church, of which there are
four, was First Church, orgamzed in 18806,

The Jewish faith was slow getung started
because, until after the Civil Wi, Allentown’s
Jewish population was very small.
the Hebrew faith started to settle herey a congre-
gation was organized and was recognized by the
faith in 1883, “The first temple, that of ('()ngl(‘
gation Keneseth Isracl, was built in 1906, Trday
there are five Jewish congregations in the iy,
one of which, lvmplv Beth-11, recently u)mplctcd
the exterior of what is considered one of the city’s
most beautiful buildings.

There are three Methodist Churches within the
city, outstanding of which is Asbury congreg: ation.
llm group includes St. fames African Methodist
I piscopal congregation, iargest among the Negro

churches.

There are two Missionary denomination con-
gregations, two of the Moravian sect, and the
First  Church  of  Christ  Scientist, Mormon,
Quaker, Unitarian and Spirieuahist Churches are
among those of the city. That the C hurch's work
is not in vain here is obvious in the fine support
accorded Allentown’s perennial welfare projects
on the one hand, and the city’s low crime record

on the other.

Interdenominational Services at 8:00 p. m., Sunday, August 20th, at Iest Park.

As people of
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THE HISTCRY OF TREXLER SERVICE

The Mink fanuly seeded in Lehigh County as carlv as IN12,
but it was not unul 1860 that Jonas Mink began undertaking
in the old Mink honte southeast of the present ciry limits of
Allentown.

Undertaking one hundred vears ago was not the complere,
professional service with which the public is famuhar today,
No one devoted full time to undereaking, but there were cabinet
makers who established repurations for building good coffins
of clear lumber. Jonas Mink was one of those whom the people
sought out at tume of death for the quality of his workman-
ship, and becauae he scemed a licde more considerate ef the
familv's feclings.

There was no scientific preserviation in those davs. Nete bors
and friends bached and dressed the body and dug the grave,
There was a simple religious ceremony with burial in the
churchyard.

When Jonas Mink died, his widow. Caroline Wicand Mink.
contintued the brsiness with che help of a nephew, Jacob 6.
Sterner.
in Allentown an i« moved to 116 South Eighith Sucer. where
he continued cabinet making and undertaking.
full control of the business in INSE People were already
beginning to expeet more serviee fron the andereaker. Modern

In 1873, he appreciated the greater opportunities

He assumed

cmbalming, however, did not become general unnl afee

TREXLER FUNERAL HOME -

16 S. EIGHTH ST. -

Oliver 8. Rabenold, nephew-imn-law of Jacob G Sterner and
Father of Arhne Rabenold Tresdern, cotered the business in
1904, By the ame he assumed full contol of it an 1915,
factorv-nade caskers had caken the place of home-made
coftms, e was tn has Wfeame, chae funceal diceting became
a profession tequnirog saentitie cducanon, the mercased us
of facihaies and cquipmane, and the full nme of che funcral
director humsdt,

Alwavs closcely assoctated with and keenly mterested i her
Pather's business, Arhime Rabenold Trevler catly recogmized
the chatlenee of the profession and the greater opporcumucs
for commumty service. Her canlv teamimge ander her Gather's
puidance, together wich the binest prepacaton at the Cincinn-
ati College, culmipnared in her profound appreciation tor all
the vaned aspects, problems and special sitaations thar are
required of present day tuneral serviee. When in 1939, Olivor
S Rabenold passed awav, leaving his famly o spotless repu-
tanton for honesey and Fare dealing, Aihine and her husband,
Theodore Voo Ceender, a wraduare of the Eekels College, and
associted with the fiem since 1927, were well cqupped o
assume conttol of the business,

With the ueh adeads and poanaples established by then
predecessors, forafied by dauntless farch and courage, M.
and Miss Theodore U Fresder wall adwavs endeavor 1o man-

ran that prceless henage,

ALLENTOWN, PA.

KE{PER’S

of doctor’s patients.

later the balance of the building.

the lines he had advocated.

PHARMACY

39 North Seventh Street

Harvey L. Keiper, who founded this establishment in May, 1895, believed
that the key to success lay in being an apothecary and serving the needs of the
medical profession, directly and by filling prescriptions and medical requirements

At the ime, the store occupied only a part of the first floor at 41 North Seventh
Street, but as the business prospered the first floor was entirely occupied, and

Mr. Keiper died in 1913, Thercafter, his family conducted the business along

[t continued to prosper and expand until today 1t

is known as one of the leading pharmacies in the eastern part of Pennsylvania.
In 1944, Miss Lillian 1. Keiper, sister of the found.r, obtained th

necdessary

priorities from the War Production Board for construction of a new, modern
pharmacy at 39 North Seventh Street, next door to the original site. Appointments
in this place are such that Keiper’s 1s better able to serve than at any time in
the past.

Keiper’'s Pharmacy--"the oldest but onc of the most modern in Allentown- -
still believes that by practicing the art of the apothecary it is best serving the
physicians and the people of this city and its environs.
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GEHRINGER - RARLACHER COMPANY

Lioyvp C.
Harry K.

GEORGE

Hartacnenr . .
Harvtey . .

). GenraNGer -

..... DPresident

W ANIYE /)I'(‘,v’I.(/('N!—.S‘('('N‘I(III\'
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The firm today known as Gehrnnger-Harlacher Co. was formed in 1919 when

George |. Gehnnger and Llovd C.

Harlacher tormed ;

v partnership. At that nme

thev purchased a retanl automobile tire store from the estate of the late Ben Burger.

After Harryv K. Harley was brought into the firman 1921, 10 was incorporated
in 1922 under its present name, opening an automotive parts store at 123 North

Seventh Street.
to move to new quarters.

I'he business grew and due to the expansion it became necessary

In 1946 a former hotel building at Seventh and Liberey Streets was purchased
by the company. and 1t was renovated to meet with requirements of the orgamza-
tion.  Today, Gehringer-Harlacher Co. 1s almost exclusively a wholesale house

for automotive parts, garage cquipment and accessorics.

[t 1s represented by

five outside satesmen who travel a territory within a radius of 235 nules of Allentown.

There are 28 employees inside the store.

Distinctive

Qe() THE Y”

Service

CLEANERS
Cleaners of Wearing Apparel

The “OnNLY" Cleaners, organized in the spring
of 1908, was given it’'s name because it was the only
drv-cleaning establishment 1in this vicimiey that did
not specialize in dveing. The business was confined
to dry-cleaning, only, and was better known at that
time as M. F. Lorish & Son. This business opened at
1027 Hamilton Street, just two doors helow its present
location, where the dry-cleaning was done on the same
yremises.  The orgamization consisted of Morris F.
;,orish, his son Fred, one scamstress, and one assistant
dry-cleancr.

Two vears later, the properey ac 1031 Hamilton
Street was purchased, and also a location for our dry-
cleaning plant at Poplar & Union Streets, where our
business has been operated for the past forty years.

In the carly years of this industry, prices were
extremely high compared to other standards of living,
and dryv-cleaning was considered quite an extravagance,
a service which only the wealthy could afford. At that
time the main supporc of the industry was mens busi-
ness suits and just the very finest of ladies wearing
apparcl. However, as time went by, and women took
their place in the business world, our business started
growing and at the present time, our large volume of
business, and indispensable service in almost every

1031 HAMILTON ST.

Phone 6181 - 6182

home, consists of all tvpes of house-furmishings and
clothing for the entire family.

Though the aruficial silk industry has brought
about many scrious problems for the dry-cleaner, at
the same ume we must attribute the success of the
business to this source, for the lowest priced merchan-
dise on the market today, must be dry-cleaned.

Thus, our business grew under the capable leader-
ship of Morris Lorish, who was active up to the tume
of lis death in March of 1928. At that tuime the busi-
ness was taken over by his son Fred, who died in
August, 1933, whose widow, Sadic E. Lorish, continued
the business upon the same principles, organized The
Only Cleaners, Inc, in October, 1934, appointing
Charles Frevman as President, Mclvin l\uhns. \’uc-
President and Ellis Schmovyer secretary.  This organiz-
ation has grown to a ;wrsonnd of thm\-clght. several
employees have given forty years of service and a large
number have been with us more than twenty-five or
thirty years.

We are now running our business under the able
management of Charles Freyman, onc of the Pioncers
of the organization, and well known in many local civic
clubs, and Community projects.

ALLENTOWN, PA.




With the advent of Old Home Week, Lehigh Stractural Steel Company surveys
with pride the ciey of Allentown, feeling that 1t has contributed its fair share
toward making Allentown the hub of a huge imduseornal center.

Lehigh Struceural Steel Co. s engaged in the fabricanon and erection of struct-
ural steel for use in buildings, bridges and switchvard structures and of towers ftor
rachio, television and transmission of electric power.  Through its products, the
company has carried its name and the name of the Queen City to most of the 48
states and many foraign countries.

Since the inceprion of the present management in 1919, the Lessco orgamization
has grown from a small group of 35 emplovees, to its present size emploving approx-
imately 6Ca men and women. A\ subsidhary, the Lehigh Constructuon Co., which
crects the structures that the pavent company fabricates, has grown unal it s the
sixth largest erection company i the whole Umted States. The Udlities Service
Co. another subsidiary, manuflactures street highang fixtures and pole hne
hardware necessary for the distribution of electric power, all of which is galvanized
i Lehigh's own plant. “Phis organization too, has grown until it has representation
in 23 different cines all over onr country.

Lehigh’s manigement has been interested in a civic growth paralleling e
business progress.  Recogmzing the need for a more educated citizenry, the compan\
has established scholarships at two leading universities for deserving sons of this
community. [n addition, the company has taken an active pait in the furtherance
of the city’s park svstem in the section adjacent to 1ts Plant.

The skills of each workei and the know-how and foresight of management
combined with the American system of free enterprise, has resulted in Lehigh’s
fine coordinated working force. It has created a reputation in the fabricating and
erection industries for meticulous attention to each job whether it be as large as
the Department of Interior building in Washington, 1.C.; as high as the 760 foot
WOR television tower across the Hudson from New York Ciey or as small as a

galvanized switch structure on a Leligh County farm. Wherever these structures
lmvc gone, they have carried with them, not only the name of Lehigh, but also the

name of our fair city of Allentown.

We are proud of our *Old Home Town” and its insticutions.  For more than
30 vears we have “belonged’ and expect to continue as one of Allentown’s industrial

enterprises for a long time to come.

LEHIGH STRUCTURAL STEEL CO
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ONE OF ALLENTOWN’S FINEST

BOWLING CENTERS



T SR | ey : ‘ VENTOWN FRIF
PIBRARY
Handsome  front of CHpacions

bulding i which nor than

100000 v olums areoat q?l\]\n\.ll

o! pubhe.

LEHIGH COUNTY
COURT HOUSE
Constructed of native stone, this
bulding, modernized inside, s
among Fast's most heaatiful Col-

onial architecture.
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e 22 LEHIGH VALLEY OIL CO. - ot st s

The Lehigh Valley Ol Co. was begun Augost 2, 1922 ar Frone
& Hamalron Sts., by Harev AL Fritsch and rhe fare Aoy, Frad
G. WO Runk, with 1 serviee station and 1 eruck. They now
serve through 3 bulk plants and warchouses, 16 trucks, 30 ser-
vice stattons and over 100 casoline deaters in 12 counties. The
Companv, chrouph able managemsent and remvesonent of
carnings 1in the business, has conunned to grow unul s
(lnnll:]l SIII(‘S dT¢ NoOw over
R2,000,000. Markering  facili-
ties rave steedily expanded un-
ul now thev can serve  all
domestic, commercial and in-
dustnal necds in gasolines, heat-
tng oils, kerosene, automotive
and industrial fubricanes, and

automotive  products.  Since

1941 Levoco furmishes automa-

tic oil-heat equipment and ser-

vice to hundieds of homus,

churches, and business build-

mgs. Since 1927 its service has
been identificd with the rrade
name, “Levoco Serviee”. The
ornzial two 10,000 gallon hulk
storave tanks have grown to
wholc ale rerminals at Allen-
rown, Strondsburp, Palmerton,
Faston, and Lansdale with al-
most 2,000,000 gallons capacity.  The Allentown wholesale
acuvitics now operate from the new 4 acre bhulk plant at
Union Boulevard and Dauphin Street, with 790,000 gallon
storage capacity, including 420,000 galions fucl oil capacity and
faciliey for 600,000 gallons additional storage. The large building
houses the lubricants, ant-freeze stock, maintenance depart-

The new Dauphin St. & Union Blvd., Alentown, bulk plant and warchouse

ment. ures, batteres, and accessones stock, wholesale sales
toom, o1l heat service, sales department and sales room,
Plans call for the ercetion of a super service station and a
main office bulding, 1o handle seneral management actuvities
now locazed ar 1200 Walnai Streer, Allentown.

Thirty Levovostations are locared in Stroudshure, Fast Strouds-
bure, Wand Gap, Palmerton, Faston, Allentown, Coplay,
Fmmaus, Quakertown, Noieh-
ampron, Pennshuryg, Red HilL,
Perkasie, Souderton, Lansdide,
Montgomeryville and Doyles-
town. Inaddition Levoco prod-
ucts are atso sold throngh <eyv-
cral hundred dealers and var-
aees.

February 10 1930 a long werm
contract was made with The
Califorma Oil Company. a sah-
sidiary of the Standard (il
Company of Caltfornia, 1o mar-
ket Calso pasolines and RPM
Jubnicants 10 a 12 county area.
Capital stock of the Lehich
Valley il Co. 15 owned by
approximately 1400 stockhold-
ers restding in the arca e serves.
Management is under the die
cetion of President Harrv A
Fritsch, the organizer of Levoco, and Elwood E. Ophnger,
firse Vice-President and Generad Manager. Board of {ircectors
arc Harry A Fritsch, Elwood F. Oplinger, . M. Calbs,
. S. Roberts, F. W, Hurst, Franics A, Deaterly, and Jav
I Hargraves.  All employvees, managing executives and
department managers are local men and women.,

H. LEH & CO. ,

This ycar marks the Centennial of H. Leh & Co., one of
Pennsylvania’s largest department stores outside of the
metropolitan arcas.  The celebration of this anniversary
will continue with special features until October.

In contrast to the single column, 4-inch newspaper advernse-
ment of 100 vears ago which proudly announced the opening
of a new clothing establishment labeled the “Temple of
Fashion” H. Leh & Co. this vear is going all-out in its program
of informing the public of the “Beginning of Qur Sccond
Century”.

Present methods of publicity were not available to Henry
l.eh back in 1830. Four inches of advertising space, repeated
week after week, was regarded then as adequate announce-
ment of the inauguration of a new undertaking in a town
of 3,778 inhabitants. But today, H. Lech & Co. serves a
trading arca having a population of about 400,000. Henry
L.ch was only 20 ycars of age when he started in business on
the same street and block in which H. Leh & Co. has been
located continuously. In 1850 young l.eh established a
clothing store, selling the first ready-made clothing in this
part of Pennsylvania. Gradually he took on additional
lines, including lamps, trunks, valises and daguerrcotypes.
And before the end of his first vear he had started the manu-
facture of boots and shoes. While some emphasis for a time
was placed upon the manufacturing, wholesaling and retailing
of hoots and shoces, other departments of the mercannle
business continued to progress with the times.

Originally, H. Leh & Co. occupied a building 20 fect wide by
110 feet in depth. Today H. Leh & Co. has at its disposal
nearly a quarter of a million square fect of floor space for sales
and service in a building that 1s modern in every respect. The
first person to he taken into partnership by Henry lLeh vas
Horatio B. Koch. Mr. Koch began his association with H.
Leh & Co. as a shipping clerk in 1874, at the age of 21 years.
He learned the business rapidly and in 1884 he was made a

. 100 Years of Growth

partier. Two vears later he was married o his partnet’s
daughrer, Sally Leb. In 1889 Henry Leh’s two sons, George
H. and John Leh, were added 1o the firm, making it possible
to spread many of the duties and responsibilities of manage-
ment.  The death of Henry Leh in his 80th year in 1910 was
an event that was marked in the community by the closing
of all stores on the afternoon of the funeral.  Thousands paid
their respects to the farm boy, who became the cary's leading
merchant, banker and builder, .

The vear after the founder's passing the shoe factors which
occupicd two upper floors of the store building was discon-
tinued.  Ar the same ome a modern fire-proof buihling
covering three-quarters of the present front was complered.
At that time H. Leh & Co. became known as the “Dayvhight
Deparement Store”.

Further expansion came in 1922 when the firm purchased
the adjoining building.  Five years carlier Leh’s had acquired
property upon which a new four-story scction was added.
In 1936 this was ¢xpanded to give access to the store from a
sccond main thoroughfare. A new store front and building
totaling 20,000 square fect were added to this section last vear.
Construction of a new store front, installation of Otis FEscal-
ators, an addition to and beautification of front of the Seventh
Street scction, provision of a firetower entrance to s 1w store
direct from a rear parking lot, and free parking space for
shoppers at the rear of the store,

In 1920, the year in which Horatio B. Koch died, his son,
Henry T. Koch, and Henry W. Leh, son of George H. ).ch,
became members of the firm. They were followed in 1924
by John H. L.ch, and in 1927 by G. FEdward Leh, both sons
of John Leh. George H. Leh died in 1940 and John lLeh
in 1944. Now as the firm embarks upon the second century,
it has announced entrance into the partnership of John leh
Il and H. Thomas Koch, Jr., great grandsons of the pioneer
founder, Henry Leh.
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1: Ows HoME, top right; MasoNic TEMPLE.
bottom right.

SOCIAL AND FRATERNAL HOMES: LenicH VALLEY SHRINE CruB, top le
center left; Jewisn COMMUNITY CENTER, center right; Woman's CLUB, bottom left; ELks Home,
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Organizations and Clubs

There are probably few cities that are as
organized as Allentown.  Although the an’s
population 1s estimated at slightly more than
106,000 persons, rosters of various organizations,
it total memberships were added, would probably
be thrice the population figure.

Numbered among the groups are fraternal and
patriotic socicties and lodges, cueltural groups,
untons and professional socicties, veterans’ units,
bands and other musical groups, social clubs,
organizations for perpetuation of old country
customs, pohtical, sports and firemen’s social
clubs, the Y. M.CAL YW.CAL Y AMILA and

Jewish Commumiey Center.

All of

have local chapters, foremost of which are the

the leading fraternal  orgamzanions
Masonie Orders.
orgamzations affiliated with the Masons. There-
after are the Odd Fellows, Elks, Fagles, Orvioles,
Moose, Tigers, P.O.S. of A., Redmen, B'na B'rith,
Owls, Kmghts of Columbus, St. George, St.
Francis, Pyvthias, Friendship and Golden Fagle.

Setvice clubs represented in Allentown in-
clude Rotary, Exchange, Kiwams, Lions, Four

Square,  Optonst, Business  Club,

Quota, Business and Professional Women and

American

Soroptimists.

Major veterans’ organizations are the Amer-
ican Legion with three posts (Lentz, Rothrock
and West Fnd), Veterans of Foreign Wars
(Greater Allentown and O)'Neill), AmVets, Catho-
he War Veterans, Jewish War Veterans, Navy
Club, Marine Corps League, United Spanish
War Veterans, Philippine Veterans, USAACs,
Disabled American Veterans, Order of Purple
Heart and Sons of Veteraus.

There are alimost a score of

The three ficld sports orgamizations  have
They are Lehigh

Creek

more than 7,000 members.

County, Pioncer and Trout Fish and

Game Protective Associations.

Nationahstie groups include Hungarian Home
Assocration, Harugart Home Association, Allen-
town ltahan Socieey, Sons of Traly, Tealian Club,

Ukranaan Crazens Club, Ahepa, Lehigh Saenger-

bund, Polish-Amencan Socicty,  St. Nicholas
Russtan  Socieey,  Slovak  Home  Association,
AMlgememer  Arbeiter Verem  and  Allentown

Turner-Liederkranz.

Social clubs are headed by the Livingston
and Shrine Clubs, followed by Clover Club, Cross
Kevs Club, Hogan Social Club, Kevs:one Fra-
ternal Association and Kevstone AL AL St. Alovsius
Young Men's  Club,
Club and the Varsity “A”,

lealian-American  Bocce
There are many
others.

John Hay and North End are the leading
Republican Clubs of the iy, while Lelugh
Democratic Club is ranked at the head of organi-
zations in the Democratic parey.

Women’s orgamizations include the Woman'’s
Club, Order of Eastern Star, Gold Star Mothers,
Mothers of World War 11, the Delphians and
the Allen-Delphians, among numerous auxiliaries
to men’s clubs and lodges, ectc.,, and church
groups.

And last, but not least, are bands, including:
The Allentown Band, Albertus L. Mevers, dir-
ector; Marnine Band, Albere P. Marchetto,
director; Municipal Band, Harry R. Newhard,
director; and Pioneer Band, Gerald J. Reinsmith,

director.
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ALLENTOWN-BETHLEHEM GAS CO. STORAGE TANK, largest and newest of several in use.
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Because of the generosity of these contributors, plus that of
the advertisers, this booklet has been made possible
at the nominal price of $1.00

ADAMS LADIES sHOP
ROHLEN, GROSS AND MOYER
CALPEY'S BARBER SHOP
CALVIN STUDIO

CLAUDE’S TOBACCO STORE
DUNGAN AND FRY

EARLE THEATRE

EUGENE JACOBS

FARR BROS.

FETTERMAN'S HA'TS

HORN'S DRYGOODS COMPANY
JUDD'S CLOTHES

KOCH BROS.

KRAMER’S MUSIC STORE
MERKLE'S GROCERY
MERRITT LUMBER CO.
SCHREITER’S, 5 LITTLE TAILORS
MARTIN STEIN

LOCAL 677, UAW-CIO

M. S. YOUNG AND CO.

A & B MARKET

AMEeRrIcus Paarmacy

ARGESON’s, FLORISTS

ArLLen Prusmsing Surery Co.
ArpPEL JEWELER, Ixc.

Ace Hoter anp Bar Svrrny Co.
ALLeENnTOowN Foop MARkET

ALLEN LAUNDRY, INC.

Tue Brass RaiL

GeNE Broch’s PaINT STORE

BROTHERHOOD oF PAINTERS DECORATORS
AND PAPERHANGERS OoF AMERICA

B-S AmusemenTt Co.

BLink’s Beverage Co.

THe Carp CENTER

Crover CLuB

FAIRVIEW VOLUNTEER FIREMAN’S ASSOCIATION
GoMERY Bros. '
GREATER ALLENTOWN Post 13, VFW
GeNERAL Paving Co.

HaruGarl HoME ASSOCIATION

Hersert Pave Lexrz Post 29, AMERicaN
l.eGroN

Fravian Averican Boccr ASSOCIATION

Jor's Har Store

l.. KOBROVSKY AND SONs

Mickey KLeMAN, FNTERTAINMENT

Lrox Fersirvre CoMpPany

Liserry Fire Company

Leman Cousty CLunMEN's ASSOCIATION

Lemcu Frurr Marker

Lenicn Vacoey Surane Croes

A Co Lemessrercer Motor Exprress

Marine Banp, Isc.

M. Fari NMinrer

Mobpery Bopy Wokks

New York Froran Co.

Norra o Rervsrnicany Crus

Orrice Urrrmes, Inc.

OrbDER SONs oF lravy

Owis Home Association

Bos PereRs SHIRT SHOP

G. A. Rin~n Parer Co., Inc.

Rovar. Manuvracruring Co., Inc.

Rovar, Whoresare Co.

CLARENCE M. STAUFFER INSURANCE AGENCY

S & G Care

SCHLEGEL Bros., Inc.

SHAFER AND LoHRMAN

ST. Aroyvsius Youns MEN's Sociery

St. Enmo Care

SHAFFER AND Max, Inc.

SANbERs-REINHARDT Co.

BEN SnERMAN

V. H. Stecker, Inc.

S. M. S. TextiLe MiuLes

Ebpwarp J. STrAvVINO

Texas Luncu

Unitep ContracTING Co.

Thue VoGuk SHoOPrre

YEiLrow Cas Co.

ZoLLINGER-HARNED Co.





